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1.1 —
inTROdUCTiOn
More than only a date to be celebrated, these 60 years
that have gone by represent an opportunity for Mendes
Júnior to restate and reinforce the values that have been
present in our history and have guided our actions since
the company was founded in December 1953.
As we perform our activities, we continuously strive for
excellence in the projects we carry out, a respectful and
fair attitude towards our collaborators and the audiences
we deal with, and the adoption of best social and environmental practices. This is what distinguishes us as a company that is prepared to develop new competencies and
overcome challenges in the heavy construction industry.
The 2012 Annual Report innovates in its visual proposition. It comprises six chapters, each one with differentsized pages that grow longer as the document unfolds.
Besides harking back to the company’s six decades of
life, this change in format portrays its evolution within
this timeframe while following a scale that is technically known as the Fibonacci Sequence, which uses the
Golden Ratio, the same one that inspired the creation
of the company’s 60-year celebration stamp.
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1.2 —
PROFiLe And BOUndARieS
For the fifth year running, this Annual Report publishes
the main initiatives undertaken in the economic-financial,
people and environmental areas in compliance with the
Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) methodology. GRI is an
NGO that encourages companies to calculate and present their results by using a defined framework of information and data that will highlight organizational transparency. The company has sought to incorporate more
information and data to the document since it began to
adopt this methodology, as it aims to evolve within the
GRI assessment.
Just like in the 2011 Report, these indicators are reported
by taking into account the segments the company deals
with - Infrastructure, Industrial Business, and Oil and Gas.
The data presented refer to operations in which Mendes
Júnior Trading e Engenharia S.A. works alone or in-consortium. In the latter case, data will reflect the participation percentage of the company in each project.
The organization’s professionals are responsible for the
veracity of the information presented herein.
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1.2 —
PARTiCiPATiVe
PROdUCTiOn
And MATeRiALiTY
As part of an effort to improve the content and the infor-

Subjects highlighted in the orange area of the chart are

mation presented in it, the 2012 Report relied on greater

the most relevant ones, themes positioned within the

engagement from the internal audience and on for-

green interval are considered to be of average material-

mal consultations with external stakeholders about the

ity, while those in the blue area are ranked as being less

themes they believe is a priority to be dealt with within

important, according to the survey’s results. The indica-

an overall business sustainability vision.

tions provided by this matrix will also subsidize discussions that will lead to enhancing the company’s man-

The first stage of this process involved hosting a face-

agement practices.

to-face panel facilitated by and external consultant. It involved 21 collaborators who assessed an defined relevant

Twenty-nine themes were mapped out, and eight were

subjects that should be included in the document. After

considered highly relevant; all of them will be monitored

performing this exercise, five senior management rep-

and managed throughout 2013. This Report already makes

resentatives were interviewed and an online survey was

it possible to follow up on the advances and challenges

carried out with ten external stakeholders that included

related to the most relevant matters. They are all dealt with

business partners, suppliers, clients, NGOs and members

throughout the text, be it by being analyzed as one of the

of the academic community. The results found led to the

company’s management elements, or be it through the ev-

materiality matrix (see below), a document that gathers

idence of practices and the presentation of related indica-

the themes that are thought to be important to the com-

tors. The process will go on through the coming years and

pany’s day-to-day routine and to its stakeholders and or-

the themes will receive deeper reflections and treatment.

ganizes them into three spheres of relevance.

participative production and Materiality
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MATERIALITY MATRIx

Most relevant
average materiality
less important
SOCIAL-ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT MANAGEMENT IN THE
SURROUNDING COMMUNITIES

EFFLUENT MANAGEMENT
ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION

level oF iMportance to external staKeholders

WASTE MANAGEMENT

NATURAL RESOURCES
MANAGEMENT

COMPLIANCE – FOLLOWING
THE NORMS, REGULATIONS,
POLICIES AND GUIDELINES
SET OUT FOR THE BUSINESS

SOCIO-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
IN COMMUNITIES

MONITORING SUPPLIER SOCIALENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
MANAGEMENT

QMSR POLICIES AND PRACTICES

HEALTH AND SAFETY

REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

PROOF OF GUARANTEE (TECHNICAL
CERTIFICATES; ENVIRONMENTAL
PERMITS; ACCREDITATIONS)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

ORGANIzATIONAL CLIMATE
MANAGEMENT

RISk MANAGEMENT

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
LABOR RELATIONS (UNIONS)

SOCIAL INVESTMENT
MANAGEMENT (SOCIAL PROjECTS)

HIRING SUPPLIERS
AT THE jOB VENUE

COMMITMENT TO SUSTAINABILITY
OBjECTIVES AND GOALS

PARTNERSHIPS WITH
SUBCONTRACTORS (THIRD PARTIES)

CLIENT SATISFACTION SURVEY

DIALOGUES WITH
THE COMMUNITIES

ETHICAL BEHAVIOR CODE

RELATIONS WITH
OUTSOURCED WORkERS

ENVIRONMENTAL INVESTMENT

SOCIAL-ENVIRONMENTAL
CRITERIA IN SELECTING SUPPLIERS

INVESTMENTS IN
NEW SEGMENTS

level oF iMportance to coMpany ManageMent
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2.1 —
A MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT
In 2012, we focused our efforts on preparing the company for a new stage in its
history. We can firmly state that as it celebrates six decades of life Mendes Júnior
continues to enhance itself and undergo changes to regain spaces and grow
sustainably while always remaining true to its essence.
This year was remarkable for the opportunities that made it possible for us to
practice value engineering in the projects we were involved in as we presented
solutions that met our clients’ expectations. Two projects deserve particular attention: the expansion of the Holcim cement plant in Barroso (MG), and the Replicantes project, for the topside building and integration of platforms to expand
the pre-salt layer at the Santos Basin (SP).
Our work portfolio at the end of last year amounted to R$ 5 billion, which shows
the dimension we strive for in our business. The volume of contract jobs stems
from the integrated work carried out by all of the company’s departments and
shows how consistent our growth strategy is.
We must also mention the work carried out as regards developing our collaborators’ competencies and skills as we move to prepare future leaders and our attitude based on respect in all our activities. This is what sustainability means to us.
The figures presented in the 2012 balance sheet came in below expectations,
as they were influenced by a difficult set of circumstances and by market behavior. Nevertheless, perspectives for this and for future fiscal years look favorable.
Increasing demands for integrated and quality solutions, and our commitment
to engineering, allow us to forecast a period of expansion in our activities. It is in
our plans to show a more decisive presence in the field of concessions and in the
Public Private Partnership model, besides looking abroad once again.
We would like to thank our collaborators’ invaluable contribution and the trust
our clients, suppliers and shareholders have placed on us.
Warm regards,

J. Murillo Valle Mendes

VISãO de SUSTeNTABILIdAde

A VISION FOR SUSTAINABILITY
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Mendes Júnior is a company that offers solutions
of excellence in the engineering business.
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2.2 —
A VISION FOR SUSTAINABILITY

VISION

World-class engineering solutions.
The stamp of sustainability is present in all stages of the projects we develop,
VALUES

from project conception and planning to demobilization and final delivery. Be-

— Excellence in the engineering business

sides our excellence in the engineering business, this is one of our differentials.

— Respect for human beings
— Fulfilling its contracts

Our well-defined policy as regards quality, the environment, health and safety,

— Perseverance

and social responsibility represents an important guideline towards acting sus-

— Ethics

tainably. It is through our accreditations (ISO 9001, ISO 14001, OHSAS 18001
and SA8000) that we attest to the way we act and to our commitment towards
developing projects that always take into account the balance among their economic, environmental and social aspects. We strictly follow the demands and
guidelines set forth by our clients so that together we can strive for responsible,
respectful and fair management that meets legal requirements while remaining
aligned to our values and to our integrated management system.
The level of excellence we have achieved is not restricted to the technical aspects
of engineering. The same kind of care we apply to our projects is also present
in our relationships so that we can maximize positive impacts and minimize any
adverse interferences that may occur. We believe it is important to continuously
learn and enhance our practices in all dimensions so that we can contribute
towards better quality of life for everyone through sustainable solutions.
The reputation we have built throughout our six decades of life is backed by
our respect for the communities we interact with, the environment and our collaborators, clients and shareholders. Our commitment to sustainability is also
an important differential in winning new businesses.
This report presents some of the practices and actions we developed in 2012
that attest to our vision and our actions.

SãO FRANcIScO
RIVeR INTegRATION (pe)
VISãO
de SUSTeNTABILIdAde

A VISION FOR SUSTAINABILITY
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2.3 —
MENDES JÚNIOR:
60 YEARS COMMITTED
TO DEVELOPMENT
We are a company that can overcome challenges and surpass our clients’

The Foreign Business Area aims to identify potential opportunities abroad

expectations, and this is one of the components that have made Mendes

in the segments in which the company works, as well as to promote the

Júnior a reference in the engineering business in Brazil and abroad. Since

conditions needed to prepare and present technical-commercial proposals

it started out the company has always stood out for its technical rigor and

and mobilize teams while identifying and defining the local partners needed

counted on support from a highly qualified team of collaborators. Such a

to discharge the projects.

strategy has ensured its presence in various engineering segments and its
portfolio encompasses large-scale works in the Infrastructure, Industrial

The Health Care Area seeks to identify opportunities dealing with conces-

Business, and Oil and Gas segments.

sions/Public-Private Partnerships (PPPs) in the health care segment, besides
defining, mobilizing and coordinating the participation of partners in this

The company is present in 16 States throughout the country and, in 2012,

segment while structuring and managing the businesses that have been won.

it moved forward by winning new jobs while at the same time preparing
itself to take up jobs abroad once again and diversify its actions - along the

ArEAS Of OpErAtION

year, its portfolio included 37 ongoing projects, with five of them having

Building industries; industrial and electro-mechanical assembly; venture man-

been finished during the year.

agement; trade; exports and imports (public and private sectors).

The concept of value engineering was present in all the work we performed.

SEgMENtS Of OpErAtION

Our main objective is to carry out a detailed examination of each function/

— Infrastructure

activity, thus creating the conditions needed to establish parameters to im-

Projects to build highways, expressways, bridges

prove the value of the products, goods and services the company offers

and viaducts, intermodal terminals, railways, airports,

vis-à-vis the costs involved in the stages of implementing, operating and

hydroelectric power plants, ports, subway systems,

maintaining a project. Such an initiative also leads to gains as regards the

and general sanitation works.

performance, quality and functionality of the services we render our clients.
— Industrial
INcrEASEd prESENcE

It carries out industrial building and assembly

As it works on projects in all regions throughout the country, Mendes

projects in the steelmaking, mining, thermoelectric,

Júnior develops its actions within three broad engineering segments – In-

and intelligent industrial complexes industries. It builds

frastructure, Industrial Business, Oil and Gas. As it readies itself to face new

and maintains oil extraction and processing platforms

challenges and incorporate new jobs, the company has added the areas of

(offshore), steelmaking plants, and oil and gas

Foreign Business and Health Care to its structure.

industrial units.

Its organizational structure encompasses six business areas, since the Infra-

— Oil and gas

structure segment is divided into two areas: São Paulo and Center-North.

Engineering solutions in integrated projects to build

The other four business areas that have already been mentioned are: Indus-

and expand refineries, terminals and petrochemicals

trial Business, Oil and Gas, Foreign Business and Health Care.

processing units and pipelines (onshore).

MeNdeS JúNIOR: 60 YeARS cOMMITTed TO deVeLOpMeNT
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c—
5.4%
B—
10.28%

A—
84.32%

A — JMJ participações Ltda.
B — Sociedade Mineira de participações
Ongoing projects

Industriais e comerciais

presence in Brazil

c — Mendes Júnior engenharia S.A.

SHArEHOLdINg StrUctUrE

MAIN INdIcAtOrS

2012

2011

Number of Employees

6,441

6,799

37

28

Mendes Júnior Trading e Engenharia S.A. is a private, non-listed company.
Its capital amounts to R$ 235 million distributed in 205,058,000 ordinary
nominative shares that are held at different percentages by four companies
controlled by private individuals.

Ongoing Projects

In December 2012, shares amounting to 84.32% of the company’s social

Investments (R$ thousand)

40,666

50,363

Net Equity (R$ thousand)

451,312

409,733

Assets (R$ thousand)

990,848

681,142

Net Profits (R$ thousand)

41,424

20,314

Benefits paid to collaborators (R$ thousand)

74,447

90,459

Resources spent on socio-cultural investments (R$)

376,444*

565,973

Total training hours for the year

454,445

540,516

5,251

9,193

capital were transferred to a partnership called JMJ Participações Ltda. that
now controls the company.

MENdES JúNIOr trAdINg E ENgENHArIA S.A.
Operational Structure
Headquarters
Accounting headquarters
Offices

Belo Horizonte
São Paulo
Brasília, São Paulo, Rio de Janeiro and Recife
Direct investments in the environment (R$ thousand)

Permanent facilities

Macaé (RJ) and Juiz de Fora (MG)
* projects carried out in 2012 through funds acquired via Incentives Laws 2011. To this amount

Subsidiaries

Rio de Janeiro and São Paulo

MeNdeS JúNIOR: 60 YeARS cOMMITTed TO deVeLOpMeNT

must be added investments made in social actions benefiting the community through the
Solidariamendes project (R$ 89,579.68).

A VISION FOR SUSTAINABILITY
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2.4 —
TIMELINE

1950

1960

1970

1953 — the beginning

1965 — Expansion period

1971 — rio-Niterói Bridge

1975 — Mauritania Highway

Engineer Dr. José Mendes Júnior

As investments in industrialization

One of the best-known large scale

The main highway in Mauritania

and his son Dr. Murillo Mendes

and infrastructure in Brazil are

jobs carried out by Mendes Júnior

is 600 km long and it links the

announce the creation of the

taken up again between 1966

was developed in-consortium with

capital, Nouakchott, to Kiffa, the

company, which was founded

and 1972, Mendes Júnior built

the Camargo Corrêa and Rabelo

country’s industrial capital. Despite

in Belo Horizonte, Minas Gerais.

the hydroelectric power plants

companies between 1971 and

the challenges it faced crossing

of Cachoeira Dourada (on the MG/

1974. Overall, it is 13,900 meters

the Sahara desert, the company

1957 — furnas Hydroelectric

GO border), Rio da Casca III (MT),

long, 8,900 of them over the sea.

delivered the project 112 days

power plant

Jaguará (MG and SP) and Boa

It used 455,000 m³ of concrete and

before the deadline.

Mendes Júnior is invited to

Esperança (PI). In Vitória (ES),

employed a labor force consisting

build the clay core of the Furnas

it delivered the project of the Port

of 12,500 workers.

(MG) dam and opens the door

of Tubarão, the largest in the world

for Brazilian companies to carry

in iron ore exports.

The building of the Baghdad1972 — trans-Amazon Highway

Akashat-Alqaim Railway

Mendes Júnior was in charge

begins. This railway links these

1969 — Santa Isabel Hydroelectric

of building 646 of the 1,260 km

three important cities in the

power plant (Bolivia)

of the highway’s first stage and it

Middle East and the project,

It marked the beginning

faced challenges due to the heavy

valued at US$ 1.3 billion,

of its international operations.

rainfall and difficulties to access

was delivered in 1985.

By building this hydroelectric

several tracts.

out such large-scale jobs
in the country.

1978 — Iraq railway

power plant in Cochabamba
between 1969 and 1973, Mendes

1973 – Itaipu Hydroelectric

Júnior became the first Brazilian

power plant

company to work on a job financed

Mendes Júnior was one of the

by the World Bank abroad.

leaders of the project to build this
power plant that up to that time
was the biggest power generator
on the planet.

TIMeLINe
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1990

1981 — Expansion

At the same time, Mendes Júnior

1990 — focus on Oil and gas

in the Middle East

built the Pampo plataform

Through contracts with Petrobras,

plant in china

The building of the Baghdad-

(offshore), located in the Campos

the company was present in the

The first Brazilian company to sign

Akashat Railway and of the

Basin (RJ) and the Tancredo Neves

Macaé Business Center (Rio de

a construction contract in China.

Expressway highway, besides the

International Airport, in Confins,

Janeiro) and in projects such as

Euphrates River water-pumping

within the Belo Horizonte (MG)

gas pipelines Gasfor (Bolivia-Brazil)

Expansion in chile

station (Siphon Project), demanded

metropolitan region.

and Cabiúnas-Barra do Furado (RJ),

The company built the Santiago

Guandu-REDUC (RJ) Waterworks,

Subway System (1994-1999),

huge and complex logistics planning

1994 — Hydroelectric power

and consolidated the company in

1985 — Siderúrgica

Natural Gas Processing Unit-UPGN

the Collahuasi ore transportation

the international heavy construction

José Mendes Júnior

(AL), besides working on the REDUC

system (1997-1998), the La Florida

market. At the time, there were

In Juiz de Fora (MG), the company

(RJ) and REFAP (RS) units.

(1998-1999) water treatment plant,

about 10,000 Brazilian workers

inaugurated Usina Siderúrgica José

living in 725 houses and 744

Mendes Júnior, a technological

1991 — Industrial Business

accommodations, besides hospitals,

standout in the industry,

and Infrastructure

schools, a supermarket and a club,

to produce long steel for

The 90s played an important role

all built by Mendes Júnior.

the civil construction market.

in reinforcing operations in the

the Corrales (1997-1999) tunnels
and Puclaro (1996-2000) dam.

industrial sector, and we must
1983 — Building Works

1989 — Arrival in chile

highlight projects in partnership

and projects in the Southeast

Operations begin in Chile with

with mining company Vale.

Mendes Júnior Edificações is set

the expansion of the Los Bronces

The company built Vila do Conde

up, a company that specializes

copper mine, 60 km away from

Port and Rio Capim Caulim Ore

in civil construction and real estate

Santiago, the capital.

Transportation System, both of

ventures. The company begins

them in Barcarena, Pará. It was also

to build the São Paulo subway

in charge of jobs such as the Belo

system and the Latin American

Horizonte Metropolitan Train and,

Memorial, which was designed

in São Paulo, of building the Sesc-

by architect Oscar Niemeyer

Pinheiros Unit (SP) and depolluting

and delivered in 1989. In Rio de

the Tietê River stream bed.

Janeiro, the company developed
the Sambódromo project, which

Mendesprev, a private retirement

was also designed by Niemeyer.

plan institution, is created.

TIMeLINe
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2000

2004

in Pernambuco and in the Platôs

The company receives integrated

de Guadalupe irrigation project

accreditation in the ISO 9001, ISO

in Piauí. In the Southeast, the

14001, SA8000 and OHSAS 18001

South sector of the Mário Covas

standards. In 2007, Mendes Júnior

Ring Road is inaugurated, in São

earned integrated re-accreditation

Paulo. The Presidente Tancredo

in these standards, and this was

Neves Administrative Center, the

repeated in 2010 and 2013.

new headquarters of the Minas
Gerais State government, is also

2008 — A Landmark in São paulo

inaugurated – another challenging

Mendes Júnior takes part in the

project designed by architect

building of the Octavio Frias de

Oscar Niemeyer and built by

Oliveira Cable-Stayed Bridge, the

Mendes Júnior.

first in the world with two curved
lanes, each one 1,200 m long, with

further highlighted projects

290 m being supported by the same

This is the decade when Mendes

mast. The engineering technology

Júnior carried out projects that

used deserves being highlighted

were relevant to the country’s

due to its complex details.

development and that led to
improved living and mobility

2010 — consolidation of the

standards, besides taking part in the

Midwest, North and Northeast

expansion of oil and gas production

markets in the country

and industry overall. Some of the

One of the company’s highlights in

examples are: Boulevard Arrudas

the Midwest is the building of Arena

(MG), Rio Paracatu Mineração (MG)

Pantanal in Cuiabá (MT), one of the

Expansion III, the expansion of

2014 World Cup headquarters.

Duque de Caxias (RJ), Gabriel Passos
(MG), Alberto Pasqualini (RS) and

In the Northeast, Mendes Júnior

Paulínia (SP) refineries, the expansion

builds Hemobrás in Goiana (PE),

of the São Paulo Subway System

the first hemo-derivatives plant

Green Line, maintenance work at

in Brazil and the largest in Latin

the Petrobras Campos Basin (RJ)

America. The company also takes

platforms, the Cacimbas-Catu (BA)

part in the duplication of BR-101

Gas Pipeline and Maceió Port (AL).

TIMeLINe
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OrgAnizAtiOn ChArt*

The Mendes Júnior corporate governance model is one of the pillars of its

President’s OffiCe

management, as it is aimed at excellence and a continuous quest for better
results. The Administration Board, which sits atop the organization chart,
defines business guidelines and strategic planning. It is made up by three
members who are elected by the shareholders, and its current president
is also the company’s top executive. The Board usually meets every two
months and its decisions are based on the concept of sustainability that

viCe-President’s
OffiCe - finAnCiAL
deveLOPMent

viCe-President’s
OffiCe – COrPOrAte
AffAirs

eXeCutive viCePresident’s OffiCe

viCe-President’s
OffiCe – engineering

is present at all company levels and also inspires its organizational culture,
encompassing its five fields of results: Economic-Financial; Market & Image;
huMAn resOurCes
direCtOr’s OffiCe

Human Capital; Quality, the Environment, Health and Safety; and Social
Responsibility and Process Technology.
The Board of Directors is led by the president and made up by four vicepresidents (Executive, Corporate Affairs, Engineering, and Financial Development), the Human Resources Director, and Business Areas Directors.
The integrated work carried out by vice presidents and directors ensures
greater speed and optimizes decision-making, which contributes to the

Center-nOrth
business
AreA

industriAL
business
AreA

OiL And gAs
business
AreA

sÃO PAuLO
business
AreA

fOreign
business
AreA

heALth CAre
business
AreA

PrOJeCts

PrOJeCts

PrOJeCts

PrOJeCts

PrOJeCts

PrOJeCts

company’s performance.
A subsequent event

In January 2013, the company moved to enhance its corporate governance
and optimize its decision-making process and business development. One
of the landmarks of this move was the creation of the guidance committee
within the executive director’s office. There are other governance processes

Company

undergoing the approval and/or structuring stages and they will be made

Business areas

public during the current fiscal year.

Results centers
*it became official in 2013

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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3.2 —
CODE OF ETHICS
The actions of our collaborators and their behavior as they deal with Mendes
Júnior audiences follow a Code of Ethics that sets out and determines the
application of principles that define the company’s business. All our collaborators know its contents and they sign the document. The Code is part
of the Social Responsibility guide and it is one of the tools in the Integrated
Management System (SGI).
The document’s guidelines and premises are aligned to Mendes Júnior
values and reinforce the application of its management model. Its basic principles demand complying to the law and to social-environmental
responsibility, respecting collaborators and other stakeholders, the right
and freedom to voice opinions, and the dissemination of the company’s
practices and behavior to our suppliers as regards environmental, workplace safety, health and citizenship issues. It repudiates any form of pressure, intimidation, moral and/or sexual harassment, as well as actions that
characterized discrimination as regards race, beliefs or sexual orientation.
All collaborators must strictly follow the guidelines and determinations of
the document. Should they identify any kind of inconsistency or behavior
as regards the company’s guidelines and determinations, they must formalize their accusation through the company’s site by accessing the Talk
to Us tool available at the company site at (www.mendesjunior.com.br)
or through their immediate superiors.
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teChniCAL COMPetenCe CertifiCAtes

Mendes Júnior has earned over 3,600 technical competence certificates that
prove its experience in various segments of engineering and construction.
Mendes Júnior uses an Integrated Management System (SGI) that is one of

These certificates have been earned throughout its six decades of existence,

the pillars of business sustainability and that brings together concepts and

when it has carried out over 800 large-scale works in Brazil and abroad.

guidelines related to the quality, environment, health and safety dimensions

Broadly speaking, the company has taken part in the building of over 15,000

as regards collaborators and social responsibility.

km of roads, over 50 km of bridges and viaducts, over 30 km of tunnels and
over 1,500 km of railways, besides over 28 thousand megawatts of hydroelec-

The Quality, Environment, Occupational Health and Safety, and Social Re-

tric power plants and over 130 thousand tons of electro-mechanical assembly.

sponsibility (QMSR), one of the relevant themes according to stakeholders
(see Materiality Matrix on the page 14), policy is the System’s main docu-

risk MAnAgeMent

ment and it guides all of the company’s initiatives. It is shared among all

Mendes Júnior manages its business risks by taking into account scenario

collaborators and they are trained to put it into practice in their daily rou-

analysis, identifying opportunities and surveying and anticipating critical

tine. In 2012, the QMSR area, which is responsible for SGI coordination,

situations. Work carried out by the organization’s various areas makes it

was incorporated into the Engineering Vice-President’ Office (VPE) as a

possible to map the risks related to financial, operations and people as-

manager-level department. The QMSR System’s focus on operations was

pects, as well as those related to impact on the environment and on the

consolidated this year as technical support and as a facilitator as regards

communities where the company is present.

developing new businesses and being a basis to generate results.
The company uses a Market Intelligence System that aims to ensure greatqMsr Policy Objectives

er reliability to its operations, thus seeking to win over new clients and

— Meeting customer and stakeholder needs;

broaden its portfolio of operations. The Business Selectiveness and Prioriti-

— The competence of its professionals;

zation System (SPN) also contributes to define opportunities, which allows

— The quality of its products and services;

company professionals to carry out more detailed and judicious analyses as

— Pollution prevention and environmental performance;

regards each project. These analyses take into account aspects such as the

— Risk prevention as regards safety and occupational health;

accreditations held by the partners involved, clients’ longevity and financial

— The company’s social responsibility;

health, and other factors.

— Constant economic productivity growth.
Due to deeper commercial prospection in the international market in 2012,
it became necessary to incorporate risk assessment related to countries
ACCreditAtiOns

that can be considered as alternatives for new project implementation. The
process takes into account previous experiences Mendes Júnior has had in

Mendes Júnior is accredited by the standards that refer to Environmental
Management (ISO 14001), Social Responsibility (SA8000), Quality (ISO 9001)
and performance in Workplace Health and Safety (OHSAS 18001), documents
that represent an important differential to project development. It is also
accredited as regards housing production quality by the Brazilian Habitat
Quality and Productivity Program (PBQP-H), a program that encompasses
the range of works on buildings, basic sanitation, roads and special arts.

countries in Latin America, Africa, the Middle East and Asia and that allow
the company to identify and mitigate risks that may interfere with the development of such businesses. Each aspect is judiciously analyzed to ensure
total and continuous liquidity to the project and thus avoid impact on the
company or on people, should there be possible problems of a political,
social or operational nature. As regards the domestic market, the new contract dynamics in the public sector also demands that risk management
should evolve and enhance controls and management in concession and in
Public Private Partnership operations.
Another alternative to adapt to the new reality and avoid running greater
risk lies in diversifying the company’s area of operations. In the current
climate, it becomes indispensable to prospect for new clients, mainly in the
private sector, as the characteristics of the public sector make it seasonal
and subject to variations related to management changes.
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infOrMAtiOn seCurity

The Information Security System is another tool that is part of Risk Management.
The company operates an effective information security strategy, which makes
it possible to deal with the challenges of protecting its data even within new
environments or platforms. The use of mobile gadgets and social media offers
risks and opportunities, and that is why it is continuously necessary to promote
the safe use of such tools.
In 2012, the company began to offer resources for safer Web 2.0 surfing. This
was only made possible through the evolution of the Internet filter tool and
a specific policy for social media use. What first led to such an evolution was
the need for the Recruitment and Selection area to prospect for new candidates through social networks.
Last year, the company also began to study and make available, reliably
and appropriately, the use of smart phones and tablets to its collaborators
so it would guarantee, at the same time, speed and reliability to corporate
activities. Usage parameters were defined by taking the potential for consumerization (the use of private gadgets within the corporate environment)
into account.
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3.4 —
STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS

Mendes Júnior seeks to maintain a straightforward, respectful and open
relationship with its stakeholders. Thus, it makes available communication
media, online talk tools (Talk to Us) and face-to-face forums with specific audiences, like the meetings held with the Barroso (MG) community last year.
In 2012, an important initiative was developed to bring the company closer
to its stakeholders by involving them in the process of preparing this Annual
Report. Representatives from among our collaborators, suppliers, clients,
business partners, NGOs and the academic community were consulted
when the company’s first materiality matrix was prepared. This matrix defined and ranked, by order of importance, the themes that should be reported in this document.
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4.1 —
OUR MARKET
In 2012, as it had already happened the year before, the construction industry felt the effects of the international financial crisis and had to put up
with delays in the execution of important projects, and these factors compromised the results achieved by the companies. Despite its having grown
more than the GPD (1.4% sectorial evolution, for a 0.9% Gross Domestic
Product expansion), overall performance came in below expectations.
Such a situation was also true for Mendes Júnior, as its results came in below the forecast made at the beginning of the year. The Holding Company’s
gross revenues amounted to R$ 1.33 billion (for net operational revenues
of R$ 1.24 billion), while its net profits amounted to R$ 41 million, which
is higher than for 2011. At the end of the fiscal year, financial expenses
increased to R$ 39 million, mainly due to postponements in payments due
from large clients.
On the other hand, the company’s project portfolio increased significantly
due to important new work acquired. The backlog at the end of the year
amounted to R$ 5 billion, an amount that enhances revenues perspectives
for 2013, assures meeting economic goals and signals a time of better
results this year.
Two of the projects that were won in 2012 should be highlighted: the contract that was signed with the consortium made up by Petrobras, BG Group
and Petrogal Brasil for the topside building and integration of platforms
for pre-salt layer expansion in the Santos Basin (SP). Known as Replicantes,
the work encompasses detail engineering, supplying, fabricating and assembling eight production modules, and integrating two floating platforms
- FPSOs (Floating, Production, Storage and Offloading), an enterprise that
amounts to US$ 900 million and should generate 3,000 direct jobs.
Another conquest that attests to the technical competence and the level of
excellence practiced by the company is the expansion project for the Holcim
cement plant in Barroso (MG), whose production capacity will rise from 1.3
million tons/year to 3.6 million tons/year, which will demand investments
amounting to R$ 1.45 billion. The fiscal year was also notable for negotiations to return to our operations abroad. The company was a pioneer in
its industry as regards winning large-scale works abroad and it is currently
negotiating its presence in Latin America and in Africa.
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PersPectives

One of the challenges Mendes Júnior faces involves replenishing its client

Projects develoPed by mendes júnior during 2012

portfolio in the Oil and Gas segment (onshore), which was a reference for
the company in the past five years as it represented, on average, over 60%

Project

city / state

ArcelorMittal Plant

Juiz de Fora / MG

Replan

Paulínia / SP

Barra do Riacho

Aracruz / ES

Guadalupe – 2nd Stage

Guadalupe / PI *

Repar

Araucária / PR

Sesc 24 de Maio

São Paulo / SP

Digital TV Tower

Brasília / DF *

in 2011 to 7% in 2012.

CPTM – Line 7 Rubi

São Paulo / SP

One of the priorities in risk management in the past year was to adapt the

CPTM – Line 10 Consortium

São Paulo / SP *

BR 101 – Plot 01 AL

Alagoas

Arena Pantanal

Cuiabá / MT

BR 101 – Single Plot PE

Palmares / PE

that deal with engineering and that include managing the business.

Capela do Alto Penitentiaries

Sorocaba / SP

% of revenues by segment of oPerations*

CPTM – Suzano Station

Suzano / SP

BR-429 RO

Rondônia *

Valec Fiol

Guanambi / BA

Dunas Port

Aquiráz / CE

Boulevard Arrudas V

Belo Horizonte / MG

São Francisco River integration

Pernambuco

Cidade da Copa road expansion

Recife / PE

TRO Leste-Oeste

Recife / PE

Subway Line 5 Lilás

São Paulo / SP

Unila

Foz do Iguaçu / PR

Sesc Paulista

São Paulo / SP

of its revenues. In 2012, this segment’s participation fell to 58% (*).
The diversification of company operations and its broader client portfolio is
part of its business risk management strategy. One of the results stemming
from this strategy is the increased participation of infrastructure businesses
to 22% of gross revenues, which derives from the more intense commercial prospection work carried out in this area in the past years. Large-scale
works such as the transposition of the São Francisco River and those related
to mobility and urban intervention in the cities that will be the headquarters
of the 2014 World Cup and the 2016 Olympic Games – building the Manaus
(AM) monorail system, the World Cup road expansion (Ramal Cidade da
Copa) and East-West Corridor in Recife (PE), the Joana River bypass in Rio
de Janeiro (RJ) and Arena Pantanal in Cuiabá (MT) – contributed towards
increasing this segment’s presence in the business portfolio. The industrial
sector also increased its participation in the previous fiscal year, up from 2%

company to the new contract dynamics in the public sector while emphasizing the concessions market. The company is placing itself in a strong position to operate in Public Private Partnerships (PPPs) and concessions, a trend
that has already been signaled by both federal and state governments.
Thus, the company has been working towards reformulating its organizational structure to prepare for this new public bidding format on the market
as it focuses not only on civil construction but also on executive projects

d—
7%
C—
13%

b—

A—
58%

22%
A — Oil and Gas
b — Infrastructure
C — Construction
d — Industrial
*Indexes refer to the holding Company.
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Projects develoPed by mendes júnior during 2012
Project

city / state

Hemobrás II

Goiana / PE

Fiat – Paint Shop

Betim / MG *

Tebig / RJ

Angra dos Reis / RJ

Comperj

Itaboraí / RJ

COHAB Caneleira

Santos / SP

Vila CAIC

Cubatão / SP
2/2

* Projects ended in 2012

Projects won in 2012
Project

descriPtion

city / state

Holcim

Expansion of the company’s cement plant

Barroso / MG

Executive project, building, supplying and
Manaus Monorail System

implementing a monorail system for the

Manaus / AM

Manaus metropolitan area
Canalization of the Ponte Baixa and Jardim
Ponte Baixa

Letícia Streams and implementing a discharge

São Paulo / SP

and path regulating reservoir

Urban infrastructure, concrete galleries,
Joana River Bypass

tunnel excavation and complementary work to

Rio de Janeiro / RJ

control flooding at the Canal do Mangue Basin

Detail engineering, supplying, fabricating
and assembling eight production and
Replicantes Platforms

integration modules for two Floating platforms

Rio de Janeiro / RJ

(FPSOs P-67 and P70) to explore the pre-salt
layer at the Santos Basin

Ferrugem

Carajás Railway

OuR MARkEt

Urban and environmental requalification

Belo Horizonte and

and flood control at Ferrugem Stream

Contagem / MG

Infrastructure, special works of art and
building sites for Carajás Railway expansion

Maranhão and Pará
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4.2 —
CLIENT RELATIONS
Respect, trust and transparency guide relations between Mendes Júnior
and its clients. Three times a year the company carries out satisfaction surveys with its audience to improve its performance continuously. As they fill
in a form with points ranging from 1 to 10, clients assess Mendes Júnior’s
performance as regards service, professional qualification and competence, the quality of its products and services, and its actions regarding
health and safety, pollution prevention and environmental preservation,
social responsibility and image, and others. In 2012, the company averaged
8.7 in the surveys carried out, which was higher than the goal of 8 points
the organization had set out to achieve, and also higher than the 8.6 average achieved in 2011.
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4.3 —
ECONOMIC INDICATORS
As it abides by the suggestions made by the new auditors hired in 2012,

indebtedness (%)

Mendes Júnior Trading Engenharia S.A now publishes its financial statements in two data formats. One of the them is in the traditional format of

2012

2011

Holding

54.45

39.85

Consolidated

54.40

39.31

previous years, now named “Holding”, and the other one is named “Consolidated” and details consolidated operations with Specific Purpose Enterprises (SPEs) and with Participation Account Companies (SCPs) in which the
company is a shareholder.

ebtida (r$ million)

oPerational revenues allocation (%)
2012

2011

Holding

104.70

61.39

Consolidated

113.59

62.59

current liquidity (%)

holding
area

consolidated

2012

2011

2012

2011

Oil

58

72

57

71

Infrastructure

22

17

25

18

2012

2011

Construction

13

9

11

9

Holding

1.78

2.40

Industrial

7

2

7

2

Consolidated

1.87

2.53

added-value statement
how mendes júnior distributes the wealth it generates (%):
overall liquidity ratio (%)
holding

consolidated

2012

2011

Holding

1.65

2.14

dva

2012

2011

2012

2011

Consolidated

1.72

2.25

Collaborators

51.04

48.62

50.27

48.56

Government

26.55

25.02

26.61

25.01

Interest and Rent

16.47

23.64

16.39

23.61

Retained earnings

5.94

2.72

6.72

2.82

net equity (r$ thousand)
2012

2011

Holding

451,312

409,733

Consolidated

460,232

427,814
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5—
ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
Environmental management practices have systematically increased due to
the natural development process of organizations and their care as regards
interferences and changes they may cause to the environment.
Based on its QMSR policy and on Integrated Management System (SGI)
guidelines, the company sets goals to minimize possible environmental impacts resulting from its activities.
All projects are constantly guided by consumption indicators that show
raw material, water, electric energy and waste management usage from
installation to demobilization. While still in the budget preparation stage,
Mendes Júnior prepares a survey of the legal requirements it needs to meet
to carry out the job. Clients will lead the environmental licensing process for
the projects, but it is up to Mendes Júnior to adopt the practices and procedures needed so that project development will meet all legal requirements,
be aligned to the client’s practices and also to the best practice benchmarks
available in the market.
Once the business has been won, the company checks the specific needs
of each project and detects the possible impacts of the activities that will
be carried out and the waste generated. One example is the building of
an ETE (Sewage Treatment Station) in the project for the Barra do Riacho
Waterway Terminal (ES). All the waste generated by the more than three
thousand collaborators working at the site go through a treatment system
that is constantly monitored by expert professionals. Non-human waste,
stemming from liquid effluents, is also directed to the ETE.
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Main initiatives to mitigate environmental impacts:
— Creating and applying operational procedures regarding the critical processes defined by analyzing and preparing a spreadsheet of environmental
aspects and impacts. A specific plan to reduce possible impacts is prepared
for each stage of the venture. Some examples are the plan to manage solid
waste generated by a project, monitoring black smoke from vehicles, and
monitoring liquid effluents.
— Defining performance indicators for the environment management system
— Awareness training for the workforce. Training happens during activities
and, on a daily basis, from themes inserted into the daily safety lectures.
— An annual simulation to enable collaborators to react vis-à-vis a possible
oil spill episode. The simulation aims for an immediate, organized reaction
that will annul or minimize the consequences of the event.
Environmental impact management is one of the themes the stakeholders the
company interviewed believe to be a relevant one (see Materiality Matrix on
the page 14).
All the guidelines and requirements needed for efficient environmental
management follow the ISO 14001 standard that was earned in 2004. The
company is also able to operate in construction works accredited by the
Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) standard. Two of the
projects carried out in 2012 follow the guidelines set by the standard and
seek this accreditation as a contractual requirement: the building of Arena
Pantanal in Cuiabá (MT) – compulsory, as defined by FIFA – and the Sesc Paulista works in the city of São Paulo. This accreditation requires the rational
use of electric energy and water and the conscious consumption of materials
at the work site, besides actions that will facilitate urban mobility and reduce
the emission of gases that can contribute towards the greenhouse effect.
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5.1 —
ENVIRONMENTAL INVESTMENTS
Total investments in environmental protection amounted to R$ 5.2 million
in 2012, compared to R$ 9.1 million invested the previous year. Such variation can be attributed to the different characteristics of the projects developed by Mendes Júnior each year, as due to their nature they demand
diverse initiatives and, consequently, different amounts for environmental
management. In 2012, there was also the demobilization of the Repar (PR)
and Replan (SP) projects and fewer activities in wrapping up the Barra do
Riacho Waterway Terminal (ES).

InvestMents and expenses In envIronMental protectIon by lIne of operatIon (r$)
IndustrIal

Infrastructure

oIl and Gas

total

2012

2011

2012

2011

2012

2011

2012

2011

296,578.89

18,214.10

778,611.22

1,017,108.06

1,731,174.72

1,745,186.84

2,806,364.83

2,780,509.00

3,278.00

1,500.00

24,517.05

5,170.07

8,613.33

69,301.00

36,408.38

75,971.07

66,804.93

4,300.00

76,101.94

40,052.00

519,202.48

1,140,514.33

662,109.35

1,184,866.33

0.00

0.00

111,405.34

33,452.16

0.00

9,811.22

111,405.34

43,263.38

Products/services needed for environmental management

16,044.00

21,419.05

251,924.83

20,940.94

0.00

0.00

267,968.83

42,359.99

Structure to collect and store waste

11,650.00

3,000.00

98,008.33

66,196.50

122,400.00

1,605,965.48

232,058.33

1,675,161.98

250.000,00

0.00

60,084.70

112,871.73

0.00

0.00

310,084.70

112,871.73

Personnel to carry out environmental management activities

64,022.49

22,149.24

295,336.22

89,116.91

440,204.27

2,821,978.80

799,562.98

2,933,244.95

Other expenses and investments in the environment

12,770.76

0.00

12,482.62

127,896.77

0.00

217,285.64

25,253.38

345,182.41

721,149.07

70,582.39

1,708,472.25

1,512,805.14

2,821,594.80

7,610,043.31

5,251,216.12

9,193,430.84

Final waste destination
Effluent analysis
Septic tank residues
Education and training

Facilities to collect and treat effluents

total
* The data regarding environmental education and training do not include the most
significant costs in such activities, which are represented by expert labor. It is worth
highlighting that each project uses its environment technicians to carry out education
and training activities, which significantly lowers the costs of such activities.
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5.2 —
MATERIAL CONSUMPTION
A general analysis of the indicators points to a reduction in the consumption
of materials and raw materials in the Infrastructure and Oil and Gas segments. However, the Industrial Business area showed considerable increase.
Materials soared from 21 tons used in 2011 to 1.7 thousand tons in 2012,
and raw materials increased from 2.8 thousand tons in 2011 to 6.2 thousand
tons last year. Such increase can be justified by the rising number of operations in the area. Just as it happens with environmental investments, material
consumption also presents significant variations according to the nature of
the projects in the company’s portfolio each year.

MaterIal consuMptIon by lIne of operatIon (t)
Infrastructure

raw MaterIals consuMptIon by lIne of operatIon (t)

IndustrIal

oIl and Gas

2012

2011

2012

2011

2012

2011

117.00

3,660.00

129.00

12.00

52.00

6,494.00

183.00

2.44

7.00

0.00

106.00

7.22

Flat steel

637.00

3,726.58

288.00

8.66

63.00

666.00

Angle iron

634.00

338.00

29.00

0.10

56.00

81.00

1,969.00

172.03

155.00

0.00

42.00

52.77

329.00

39.00

1.00

0.10

10.00

4,072.22

Round bars

5.00

7,209.10

4.00

0.00

14.00

1,091.07

Profiles

19.00

1,566.07

100.00

0.20

61.00

511.31

Nails

19.00

18.11

8.00

0.00

7.00

12.59

Wire

62.00

19.57

7.00

0.00

8.00

119.40

Wire rope

205.00

50.95

226.00

0.00

1.00

0.04

I-beams

4,912.00

0.00

708.00

0.00

15.00

0.00

total

9,090.00

16,801.85

1,664.00

21.06

435.00

13,107.62

Tubes
Ribbed welded
mesh

Beams
Flat bars

MATERIAL CONsuMPTION

Infrastructure

IndustrIal

oIl and Gas

2012

2011

2012

2011

2012

2011

Sand

22,301.00

25,928.00

3,826.00

90.00

11,249.00

33,320.00

Crushed stones

69,977.00

85,865.00

1,287.00

2,792.00

26,416.00

37,637.00

Cement

11,067.00

31,475.00

1,158.00

0.00

756.00

9,217.00

9.00

383.00

1.00

0.00

0.03

0.00

103,354.00

143,651.00

6,272.00

2,882.00

38,422.00

80,174.00

Cal
total
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5.3 —
ENERGY
In 2012, a Mendes Júnior reduced its electric energy consumption by almost
50% when compared to 2011. The use of a solar power system at the Unila
(PR) project is an alternative that can be adopted in other projects and contribute towards lowering this consumption indicator.

solar power systeM at unIla

Photovoltaic cells installed in the dressing room area of the Unila project
in Foz do Iguaçu (PR) guaranteed lower electric energy consumption at the
jobsite. A pioneering action carried out at Mendes Júnior projects, the solar
power system generates expressive results that surpass the investment made
to install it while also reducing environmental impact, as it uses a renewable
source. In annual and current figures, the economy achieved in electric
energy consumption stands at over R$ 90 thousand.

electrIc enerGy consuMptIon by lIne of operatIon (GJ)
2012

2011

Offices

2,131.89

2,510.61

Infrastructure

3,370.91

3,554.92

Industrial

2,418.40

668.40

Oil and Gas

1,318.92

12,674.60

total

9,240.13

19,408.54

*Energy consumption is measured as received from utility companies and does not correspond
to the total actually used by Mendes Júnior for the year. Complementary energy can be
obtained by using generators.
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5.4 —
WATER
The rational use of water is a practice that is present in all projects led
by Mendes Júnior. In 2012, there was a 32% drop in consumption when
compared to the previous year. Such change can also be attributed to the
different scopes of projects from one year to the other. For example, job
sites that use less concrete will demand less water.

water consuMptIon by lIne of operatIon (M³)
2012

2011

Offices

10,415.00

7,766.00

Infrastructure

55,315.16

77,610.37

Industrial

10,149.56

1,605.20

Oil and Gas

465,745.83

706,712.96

total

541,625.55

793,694.53

* water consumption is measured as received from utility companies and does not correspond
to the total actually used by Mendes Júnior for the year. Complementary water can be
obtained through wells.
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5.5 —
WASTE MANAGEMENT
Mendes Júnior employs a systemic procedure that defines all classes of waste
at job sites. It is based on such a procedure that it determines the kinds of
control, monitoring and mitigation needed and the correct treatment and
destination of waste classified as being either dangerous or not dangerous.
There is a corporate procedure to guide waste management at the projects
that sets out specific instructions adapted to each venture’s reality.
All job sites are regulated for waste recycling by an installment standard and
a collection standard for refuse set aside to be recycled.
At Headquarters, paper waste is sent to the Belo Horizonte Association of
Paper and Recyclable Material Gatherers (Asmare), thus contributing towards generating income for several families.

waste Generated by lIne of operatIon (t)
IndustrIal

Infrastructure

oIl and Gas

total

2012

2011

2012

2011

2012

2011

2012

2011

non-dangerous waste
Paper / cardboard

Recycling

1,239.73

2.32

13.64

44.74

91.59

84.93

1,344.96

131.98

Plastic

Recycling

1,132.94

4.60

9.55

34.04

162.30

102.47

1,304.79

141.12

Metal

Recycling

2,485.31

0.63

12,448.96

824.93

842.77

224.68

15,777.04

1,050.24

Wood

Recycling

10,503.33

3.06

35,345.51

696.44

1,560.96

5,353.44

47,409.80

6,052.94

Glass

Recycling

41.54

0.35

56.49

0.13

80.63

0.29

178.66

0.78

Organic

Recycling

11.70

0.58

36.73

20.79

192.39

136.24

240.82

157.69

Demolition rubble

Class II Industrial Landfill / Crushing

50,481.15

7.50

313,231.24

36,486.09

11,020.29

11,472.56

374,732.68

47,966.15

Common trash

Sanitary Landfill

247.12

3.26

54,716.18

378.36

339.84

484.80

55,303.14

866.41

Leftover material from excavations

Class II Industrial Landfill

19,799.51

6.60

2,617,344.45

75,484.67

23,146.65

73,315.53

2,660,290.61

148,806.80

Cutting disc / electrode tip

Class II Industrial Landfill

16.27

0.00

0.00

0.01

3.26

15.00

19.53

15.01

5.00

0.00

110.42

300.14

70.80

64.27

186.22

364.41

85,963.60

28.90

3,033,313.17

114,270.34

37,511.48

91,254.28

3,156,788.25

205,553.53

Others (describe)
total non-dangerous waste

1/2

wAsTE MANAgEMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

89

90

MENdEs JúNIOR

ANNuAL REPORT 2012

ANNuAL REPORT 2012

MENdEs JúNIOR

waste Generated by lIne of operatIon (t)
IndustrIal

Infrastructure

oIl and Gas

total

2012

2011

2012

2011

2012

2011

2012

2011

457.28

1.39

10,760.95

7.07

268.84

178.14

11,487.07

186.60

35557.67

253.04

271.54

816.29

3,731.41

30,454.80

39,560.62

31,524.13

dangerous waste
Contaminated waste / non recyclable

Class I Industrial Landfill

Sanitary effluents

ETE / Septic Tank

Used lubrication and hydraulic oil

Re-refining

7.80

1.53

0.22

988.41

0.00

0.00

8.02

989.94

Asbestos tiles

Class I Industrial Landfill

1.00

0.00

35.72

3.86

0.00

0.00

36.72

3.86

Contaminated EPIs

Class I Industrial Landfill

5.45

2.46

3.22

2.94

33.13

11.00

41.80

16.40

2.93

0.00

0.16

0.13

0.28

0.35

3.37

0.47

Waste generated by health care services

Autoclave/Incineration/ Class I
Industrial Landfill

Fluorescent lamps

Decontamination / Recycling

0.17

0.00

0.07

0.40

90.3

0.69

90.54

1.10

Empty printer cartridges and toners

Decontamination / Recycling

12.88

0.02

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

12.88

0.02

Tires

Reused for Other Ends

0.00

0.00

0.63

2.10

1.00

0.08

1.63

2.18

Others

Class I Industrial Landfill

0.00

0.00

35.64

18.35

1.73

8.66

37.37

27.01

36,045.18

258.44

11,108.15

1,839.57

4,126.69

30,653.71

51,280.02

32,751.72

122,008.78

287.35

3,044,421.32

116,109.91

41,638.17

121,907.99

3,208,068.27

238,305.25

total dangerous waste
overall total (non dangerous
and dangerous)
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5.6 —
GAS EMISSIONS
The company adopts prevention measures regarding gas emissions by
controlling black smoke from vehicles and equipment. This control is carried out by means of the Ringelmann scale – with rigorous visual control
– and it is carried out in all equipment powered by diesel oil, stationary or
not, whether rented or owned by the company. Should any anomaly be
identified, such equipment/vehicles are decommissioned to be repaired
and their level of emissions returned to normal standards.
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6.1 —
PEOPLE OUR GREATEST ASSET
Mendes Júnior Human Resources management faced broad challenges
in the previous fiscal year. The characteristics inherent to carrying out the
projects developed by the company demand a large contingent of qualified professionals, and this comes up against the current reality of Brazilian
labor, which is one of a lack of people appropriately educated and skilled in
technical fields. To guarantee support and expansion for the business, the
Human Resources Director's Office undertook the second Human Capital
Mapping cycle. This stage involved 662 experts and leaders and aimed to
learn about its collaborators’ skills and position them better by updating the
register of their competencies, aspirations and professional paths, mapping
the possibilities for in-house positioning and consolidating its assessment.
Last year the company also developed an integrated people management
system that is being implemented now. It is a tool that will make it possible
to link the various human resources processes, which means a significant
change to all subsystems, including selecting and hiring via the system, corporate education, people management, payroll, benefits and job and salary
planning. It enhances quality and insures the speed and security of information on human capital throughout the country.
At the same time, in 2012 the company developed a program named “Building the Future” to prepare the transition between veteran collaborators and
the new generations. Plans for veteran professionals’ leaving the company is
carried out in a personalized and organized way by taking into account each
collaborator’s expectations and personal projects, all allied to the company’s
needs as regards succession.
In 2012, it is also worth highlighting the participation and contribution made
by the Human Resources area in winning an important business, the Holcim
project. Through its strategic actions, and working together with the client,
the area defined the human and social aspects that involve the project and
suggested new ways to enhance relations with the Barroso (MG) community.
Mendes Júnior is constantly concerned about workplace environment conditions. Although it does not carry out systematized climate management
through specific measurement and monitoring tools, the company closely
follows up on environment quality and develops people management initiatives and processes that aim to improve organizational climate continuously.
The development actions that are carried out, the scope of the benefits offered, the efforts made to increase communication, and other people management projects implemented are all examples of initiatives to be closer to
our internal audience by engaging and motivating our collaborators.
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Collaborator profile

Number of Collaborators by type

Number of Collaborators by geNder
2012

2011

Administrative

979

896

Male

Apprentice

55

68

Female

Expert

316

476

total

Intern

33

48

Executive

9

9

528

1.088

Operational

4,521

4,214

total

6,441

6,799

Management

2012

2011

5,970

6,388

471

411

6,441

6,799

turNover rate by geNder (%)

2012

2011

Male

84.57

86.05

Female

40.34

40.87

turNover

Number Collaborators per regioN
2012
South
Southeast
Midwest
Northeast

839
4,616
292
694

turNover rate by age raNge (%)

2012

2011

Up to 25 years of age

93.83

89.79

From 26 to 30 years of age

94.35

88.17

From 31 to 40 years of age

85.67

86.08

From 41 to 50 years of age

70.49

80.15

Over 51 years of age

47.94

64.02

2011
1,749
4,689
42
316

North

0

3

total

6,441

6,799
turNover rate by regioN (%)

2012

2011

South

81.29

14.09

Southeast

78.40

72.72

Midwest

44.18

1.765

Northeast

116.57

11.43

0.00

0.00

Number of Collaborators by age raNge
2012
Up to 25 years of age
From 26 to 30 years of age

1,328
1,203

2011
1,548
1,276
North

From 31 to 40 years of age

1,898

1,860

From 41 to 50 years of age

1,186

1,209

826

906

6,441

6,799

Over 51 years of age
total
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termiNatioNs*

MENdES JúNIOR

traiNiNg aNd developmeNt

One of the main growth challenges Mendes Júnior faces is that of driving the
development of professionals with the potential to occupy technician/expert
termiNatioNs

%

and management level positions. Thus, the Young Professionals Program is
an important tool to prepare future leaders. This program seeks to speed

Male

5,049

96

up the process of professional qualification and development of the young
people who come into the company as interns and trainees and go through

Female

190

4

continuous development until they reach the stage when they can take over
management positions. It also seeks to generate exchanges between less

total

5,239

experienced professionals and those who have greater experience at the
company so that these generations can share competencies and create new
and better-consolidated knowledge that will add value to the company.

Number of termiNatioNs by age raNge

%

Besides the Young Professionals Program, the Training and Development
area carried out other activities that seek to share competencies and so offer

Up to 25 years of age

1,246

23,78

From 26 to 30 years of age

1,135

21,66

From 31 to 40 years of age

1,626

31,04

From 41 to 50 years of age

836

15,96

our professionals deeper learning and better preparation. All leaders at the
company are coached during their management duties, which guarantees
support for results generation and for the practice of the company's strategic management model.
In 2012, the area's budget was cut back due to the previous fiscal year's
economic performance, which influenced financial expenditure in training
initiatives. Thus, the company heightened its efforts towards less onerous

Over 51 years of age

396

7,56

alternatives such as On the Job Training and Job Rotation programs, among
others. The work demobilization move begun in 2010 was another factor

total

5,239

that contributed towards a lower training workload.

traiNiNg evolutioN by fuNCtioNal Category (h)

Part time

professioNal Category

iNdiCators

2012

2011

Full-time Professionals

Workload

8,410

17,650

Temporary Professionals

Workload

422,858

474,581

Service Providers

Workload

23,177

48,285

454,445

540,516

2012

2011

Investments in Training at Headquarters

216,616.00

1,111,124.00

Investments in Training in the Projects

474,718.07

263,590.61

total investments

691,334.07

1,374,714.61

71

Number of termiNatioNs by regioN

2012

South

682
total Workload

Southeast

3,619

Midwest

129

Northeast

809

the evolutioN of iNvestmeNts iN traiNiNg (r$)
professioNal Category
North

0

total

5,239

* the number of terminations is directly linked to project wrap up and demobilization during this time span.
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beNefits aNd remuNeratioN

(Remuneration and Benefits are themes that were considered to be relevant by

Mendes Júnior offers its collaborators a set to benefits that includes, among

the survey carried out with stakeholders – see Materiality Matrix on the page 14).

MENdES JúNIOR

others, medical assistance, meals, transportation, group life insurance policy, and participation in results.

private retiremeNt plaN

For the past 22 years, Mendes Júnior collaborators have benefitted from
In 2012, the company began a process of restructuring its job and salary

a private retirement plan managed by Mendesprev Sociedade Previden-

plan, setting up cycles to analyze individual and collective salary adjust-

ciária that offers voluntary membership and guarantees not only addi-

ments and redefining its total remuneration model, thus fitting its policies

tional retirement income but also the benefits of disability retirement and

and practices to market reality and ensuring competitive advantages as re-

a death pension for a collaborator’s dependents. Collaborators who leave

gards attracting and retaining professionals.

the company can opt for the Deferred Proportional Benefits, Portability,
Withdrawal or Self-Sponsored Institutes.

amouNts speNt oN beNefits

Although the number of jobs/areas rose from 28 in 2011 to 37 in 2012, the

Mendes Júnior currently sponsors two Plans: the Mixed Benefits Plan and

amount spent on benefits decreased last year due to the demobilization

the Defined Contribution Benefits Plan (CD). In December 2012, the Mixed

process at significant projects (Repar, Replan and Barra do Riacho Water-

Benefits Plan included 195 active participant five self-sponsored ones, plus

way Terminal).

59 retired beneficiaries (seven on disability pensions, 14 on normal pensions
and 38 on early pensions). In 2012, the Defined Contribution Benefits Plan
included 346 active participants and 16 self-sponsored ones.

beNefit (r$)

2012

2011

health

16,777,793.34

19,492,482.63

3,504,785.93 and amounted to R$ 2,986,035.74 for the Mixed Benefits Plan.

Health Plan*

15,436,171.02

17,572,447.46

The plans are run by Mendes Junior Trading e Engenharia S.A., and besides

Dental Plan**

1,341,622.33

1,920,035.17

In 2012, total contributions received by the CD Benefits Plan amounted to R$

being their sponsor it is responsible for meeting their administration costs.
meNdesprev soCiedade prevideNCiária
food

33,586,546.86

40,766,839.35

Canteen

13,457,815.42

16,284,165.78

Meal ticket

5,538,874.92

10,925,299.79

Food ticket

13,617,949.01

10,197,786.87

971,907.51

3,359,586.91

group life insurance

2,084,347.06

Group life insurance****

defiNed CoNtributioN beNefits plaN (pCdb) — CoNtributioNs reCeived (r$)
2012

2011

Normal Sponsored

748,639.14

506,779.92

Sponsor’s Administration Costs

744,896.74

490,622.57

2,325,806.47

Normal from Participants

1,613,187.36

1,091,894.06

2,084,347.06

2,325,806.47

Extra from Participants

138,305.75

140,395.20

Collaborator transportation

15,697,470.90

19,564,537.42

Portable Resources

180,557.32

12,215.74

Own transportation

13,033,509.00

18,040,410.84

Self-sponsored Contributions

79,199.62

55,624.21

Transportation voucher*****

2,663,961.90

1,524,126.58

3,504,785.93

2,297,531.70

plr

6,301,293.85

8,309,333.58

PLR - 2011 paid in 2012

6,301,293.85

8,309,333.58

74,447,452.02

90,458,999.46

2012

2011

81.55%

52.81%

1,856,928.83

1,745,301.69

Normal from Participants

952,976.44

915,187.43

Self-sponsored Contributions

165,890.29

81,441.09

10,240.18

11,251.78

2,986,035.74

2,753,181.99

Staples Basket***

total

mixed beNefits plaN — CoNtributioNs reCeived (r$)

overall total
% participation mJte

* health insurance is extensive to all full-time collaborators, that is,

the client requires such a benefit.

all those who are hired and managed by headquarters (no matter

*** Supplied as required by the collective labor agreement for each

where they work); and temporary collaborators who work in projects

region where the company works.

in which such a benefit is required either by the client or by Collective

**** A single policy for all company collaborators (no matter whether

Labor Agreement.

they are managed by headquarters or by the project).

** For locally managed collaborators who work in projects in which

***** For all company collaborators

Normal from Sponsor

BPD Option
total
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beNefits paid (r$)
Normal Retirement

1,764,785.52

Early Retirement

2,624,691.49

Disability Retirement
total

23,708.57
4,413,185.58

Obs. 59 retirees (disability retirement: seven; normal retirement: 14; early retirement: 38).

In 2012, the CD Benefits Plan’s profitability reached 18.68%, while the Mixed
Benefits Plan’s profitability amounted to 14.80%.
Besides these retirement plans, and by an agreement with the two plan’s
sponsor, Mendesprev makes available a line of consigned loans to participants and dependents at preferential, variable interest rates that are calculated according to each payment plan and deducted from the paycheck.
employee represeNtatioN

Collaborators from all projects and also from Headquarters are represented by their workmates through committees whose job is to carry on
conversations with the company's senior management regarding subjects
related to the SA8000 (Health, Safety and Working Conditions) standard.
The collaborators themselves elect these representatives and they can
send their requests through the communication tools that have already
been consolidated, such as e-mails and the suggestion box.
labor relatioNs

Mendes Júnior respects the actions of labor unions and seeks to maintain a
professional and healthy relationship with worker representatives. However,
in 2012 the company faced work stoppages at some of its projects. There
were strikes at the Holcim project in Barroso (MG); at the Barra do Riacho
Waterway Project in Aracruz (ES); at Hemobrás, in Goiana (PE) and at Unila,
in Foz do Iguaçu (PR), for a total of 56 days of work stoppage in the year, 47
of them at the Barra do Riacho project.
As it strives to decrease labor relations conflict, the company promoted
closer relations with the labor unions in the regions it operates. Labor relations are defined by collective agreements or conventions that encompass
all workers and they are defined according to each labor union’s region/
base of action.
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6.2 —
HEALTH AND SAFETY

MENdES JúNIOR

Criteria considered
* there was one fatal accident that happened to a subcontractor’s employee at project 616 Suzano Station.
** Criteria considered in this survey described in the 2009 consolidated data report

Health and safety at the workplace (another theme highlighted by the stake-

*** to calculate tFSA, tFCA and tG rates, lost days and days credited due to accidents with
member loss are considered, as per norm AbNt 14.280. the coefficient of MJ participation

holder survey – see Materiality Matrix on the page 14) are indispensable to

in in-consortium jobs must also be considered

the success of all the projects the company develops. In 2012, the company

**** Formulas to calculate tL, tdO, tdP and tA rates:

set up the Corporate Committee for Occupational Safety and Health (SSO),

tL = # of Lesions x 200,000
----------------------------------

which aims to improve its collaborators’ conditions regarding health and

# of hours worked

safety at all its projects by monthly monitoring and critically analyzing SSO

tdO = # of Occupational Illness x 200,000

results. The Corporate Committee is made up by the Vice-Presidents and

-----------------------------------------------------

by the Human Resources Director, and for each project there is a Subcom-

# of hours worked

mittee made up by the Contract Manager, Administrative-Financial Manag-

tdP = # of Lost days x 200,000

ers, Production Manager, QMSR coordinators and professionals from the

----------------------------------------------# of hours worked

workplace safety area. Over 70% of our employees are represented by the
Committee. After the Corporate Committee was set up, new goals for SSO

tA = total absenteeism days x 100

indicators were defined that aim to align the company to market reality.

--------------------------------------------total days worked

tfCa — Frequency Rate with Time Off – from 2.8 to 2.3

***** tdO: Occupational Illness Rate: its denominator is the reference of hours worked

tfsa — Frequency Rate without Time Off – from 7.5 to 7.0

(subcontractors are not counted).
tA: Absenteeism: it refers to medical leave absenteeism for longer than, or equal to,

tg — Seriousness Rate – from 99 to 90

one day, for any reason (accident, common illness, etc.). Its denominator is the reference of

iap — Medical Leave Index– from ≤ 1.5 to ≤ 1.3

hours worked (subcontractors are not counted).
****** # of Lesions: accidents with or without time off that befell Mendes Júnior/Consortium
employees and subcontractors were considered as injuries

There was one fatal accident in the previous fiscal year. It happened at the

******* # of Lost days: all the days lost due to typical accidents that befell Mendes Júnior/
Consortium and subcontractors were taken into account;

Suzano Station project in São Paulo. Due to this fact, the TG – Seriousness

******** total hours worked: the hours worked by Mendes Júnior/Consortia and

Rate index – increased for the period.

subcontractors were considered
********* deaths: taking into account the fatal accident that happened to a subcontractor’s
employee at project 616 - Suzano Station.

2.53

2.17

tg: seriousNess rate

aCCideNts Without time off

0

tfsa: frequeNCy rate of

0.01

aCCideNts With time off

3.61

tfCa: frequeNCy rate of

total deaths for the period

illNess rate

0

ta: total abseNteeism

0.94

tdp: total lost days

Industrial

tdo: oCCupatioNal

health aNd Work safety iNdiCators iN 2012*

tl: lesioN rate

110
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2013

2012

2011

FAP

1.2199*

0.8860

0.8869

RAT

3.65%

2.65%

2.66%

* the Mendes Júnior 2013 FAP is under legal injunction due to calculation error by INSS.
Mendes Júnior has already asked for a review that is being assessed by INSS and the company
expects the 2013 FAP to fall by about 10% compared to 2012.

CommuNiCatioN

Communication with collaborators, communities and other stakeholders
is strategically valuable to Mendes Júnior. This area is linked to the Human

Infrastructure

1.00

0

238.22

0.04

1

3.32

1.68

1.191

Resources Director’s Office and its challenge in 2012 was to implement
solutions that sought to sustain the company's position and brand value

Oil and Gas

1.35

0

3.76

0.01

0

0.93

5.85

19

within the current business environment. The company has internal communication means available to it, such as the Ponto da Notícia”; the printed

total for 2012

1.06

0

71.38

0.02

1

1.88

3.40

357

corporate newspaper “Mendes e Você”, and the printed supplement of the
“Fique por Dentro” projects. There is a permanent quest to increase infor-

total for 2011

1.04

0

2.43

2.11

0

1.14

4.05

15

mation sharing and to achieve closer relations between the company and
its collaborators, which will lead to greater alignment and engagement.

*“total MJtESA” calculations consider the average between the rates for the job sites
and headquarters.
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6.3 —
SOCIETY RELATIONS
suppliers

At the beginning of each project, the company defines

and costs. The preparation of the project was a volun-

velopment of the communities surrounding the projects

Laborers at the Arena Pantanal (MT) project, a pioneering

the makeup of the supplies needed to perform the job.

tary action to donate competencies and it was carried

and the units. In 2012, the program received funding

initiative in the country and one that has been recognized

This work is shared between the corporate supplies area

out by a group of collaborators from the engineering

amounting to R$ 89.5 thousand. Among the various ac-

by the World Trade Organization (WTO). There is also the

and the project team, and it seeks the best technical-

area at Headquarters. This initiative was fundamentally

tions it promoted, we should highlight volunteering (Dia

Young Apprentice program that is held at the Barra do

commercial conditions regarding supplies, products and

important, as it allowed the association to find partners

V and the “Calor Humano” campaign), which plays an

Riacho Waterway Terminal project, which made it possible

services to meet the needs of the job and to guarantee

that will make it feasible to rebuild the warehouse.

important role in creating trust among people, develop-

to qualify 23 young people in industrial mechanical main-

ing competencies and valuing the human aspect of rela-

tenance courses, and the inclusion program for people

quality within the standards established and in accordance with labor law and with the social responsibility

media

tionships. Other programs that must be highlighted are

with special needs, both of which seek inclusion through

determinations set out by the SA8000 standard.

The company maintains a transparent attitude with com-

the ones developed at the Holcim project in Barroso (MG)

processes that involve legal, social and development aspects. Both initiatives are relevant in this field.

munication media by sharing with public opinion infor-

County. Environmental education, leisure for children and

Throughout 2012, as it seeks a global vision for its sup-

mation about relevant themes. Since 2011, it has used a

guidance regarding health care are some examples of the

plies, Mendes Júnior developed international contacts

tool (named Radar) to monitor its presence in the media

activities performed.

in its quest for alternative solutions that will ensure

and analyze its brand exposure. This system takes into

better performance to meet project needs. The United

account the characteristics of the media involved, such

Besides the actions undertaken by Solidariamendes, so-

is coordinated by the Federation of Industries from the

States, China, South Korea, and countries in Europe

as their reach and readership figures, the subjects men-

cial inclusion programs are also run to make for a work-

State of Minas Gerais (Fiemg), and its 11th event in 2012

make up the list of nations that complement the supply

tioned and how relevant they are to the company, the

place environment that is accessible to people with special

brought together 537 volunteers from 28 Mendes Júnior

of solutions to Mendes Júnior.

content and the prominence of the news, among other

needs. Among these programs we should mention the

units. These solidarity actions benefited over 2,200 peo-

parameters. This leads to the Media Reputation Index,

Inclusion Program for Former Prison System Inmates at the

ple, including children, teenagers and senior citizens from

Goals for 2013 include enhancing the management tool

an indicator that represents the impact of the news on

Unila (PR) project; the Inclusion Program for Former Slave

institutions in eight Brazilian states.

used to assess supplier performance and continuing to

brand reputation and contributes towards guiding com-

work on internal and external audits to monitor issues

munication actions and management with the press.

The company and its collaborators attend the annual Dia
V – Volunteer’s Day that is held in August. This initiative

proJeCts Carried out iN 2012 through iNCeNtives laWs*

such as meeting deadlines, quality and conformance to
QMSR requirements, thus ensuring the results of the

For the two years it has been in use, Radar has shown

projects carried out by the company.

an evolution as regards Mendes Júnior brand expo-

proJeCt

obJeCtive

sure in the press: in 2012, the index averaged 1,066.41
the publiC seCtor

points, which means 17% over the 908.08 average for

Relations with government representatives are carried out

the previous year. The rise in the index reflects the com-

by the vice-presidents and by the business areas that deal

pany’s intentional actions vis-à-vis the press in 2012 and

with the government. The company works to enjoy closer

it was related mainly to winning projects.

Associação Mineira

Ngos aNd osCips

company and carries out several actions that will con-

de Reabilitação (AMR)

Mendes Júnior supports socially responsible actions by

tribute to the development of the communities where it

Sports Inclusion

Non-government Organizations (NGOs) and Civil So-

works. It invested over R$ 376 thousand in social projects

ciety Organizations in the Public Interest (OSCIPs). As-

throughout 2012.

rectly linked to the Human Resources Director's Of-

Solidariamendes program for the past 10 years through

fice, is in charge of coordinating the development of

social responsibility institutional actions. The company

these initiatives.

agenda in the town of Barroso and in other towns

inclusion through sports, rebuilding, corrective
surgeries, and wheelchair and sports equipment

FIA

72,865.00

Rouanet Law

Support the 2012 Season of the Minas Gerais
Philharmonic Orchestra, mainly for four open

for the Minas Gerais

air concerts at squares and parks in the Belo

Philharmonic Orchestra

Horizonte Metropolitan Region, thus
broadening cultural promotion and access.

The area defines its actions based on three pillars: promot-

their income tax dues to AMR.

ing quality and productivity at the workplace, social inclu-

Educating and

sion and social actions within the communities in which

Developing Athletes

Promote the training, technical and human

Mendes Júnior works.

by Integrating Sports

development of about one thousand athletes.

57,000.00

Sports
Incentives Law

Sciences

(Asmare). In 2012, the company donated the project to

The institutional program called Solidariamendes, which

revitalize ASMARE storage facilities in the Barro Preto

was 10 years old in 2012, promotes social responsibility

district, in Belo Horizonte, encompassing services survey

actions and campaigns that seek to contribute to the de-

SOCIEty RELAtIONS

57,000.00

purchases. It is aimed at children and adolescents

paign that encourages collaborators to give a share of

sociation of Paper and Recyclable Material Gatherers

Rouanet Law

actions for people with special needs, and their

Cultural Support

also carries out an annual “Imposto Solidário” cam-

Mendes Júnior also supports the Belo Horizonte As-

100,000.00

up to 17 years of age.

sociação Mineira de Reabilitação (AMR), which deals
consequences of cerebral palsy, has benefited from the

meChaNism

Carry out rehabilitation and social inclusion

Mendes Júnior understands the role it plays as a citizen

The Corporate Social Responsibility area, which is di-

alloCated (r$)

in the Zona da Mata region.

CommuNity

with children up to 12 years of age who suffer from the

iNCeNtives

Host the Circuit of Life, an event with a cultural
Circuit of Life Festival

relations and to reinforce the climate of respect and trust
that guides all its actions towards its stakeholders.

amouNt

*through incentives received in 2011.
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the maiN soCial CampaigNs uNdertakeN

soCial aCtioN profiles

by the solidariameNdes proJeCt iN 2012
150

CampaigN / aCtioN

124

125

loCal

111

To offer medical appointments, children's recreational activities,

100

Leisure street

Goiana / PE

personal document issuance and a hair salon workshop for the
underserved community in the Tejucupapo district, supported
by the Tejucupapo Heroines’ Association.

75

50

aCtioN summary

45

45

Campaign Beach
Cleaning World Day

Aquiraz / CE

Cleaning and gathering waste along 40 km of beaches
and taking it to a sanitary landfill.

25

Solidariamendes focus

The Consortium of the São Francisco River Integration project,

Local demands
2012

supported by the Economic Development, Science and

2011

Technology Secretariat in Salgueiro/PE, signed a partnership

solidariamendes focus: these are actions that meet the needs of the

Donation of used

at-risk groups defined as the focus of the program: senior citizens, chemical

uniforms to be reutilized

with Mamulengo, a craftswomen association. From the used
Salgueiro / PE

uniforms that are donated to the Association, they make
handicraft products such as purses, cushions, towels and rugs

dependents, people with special needs, and recycling cooperatives.

to sell. Besides forging closer bonds between the company and
the community, the partnership contributes to the economic

local demands: initiatives related to other audiences that the projects

development of both the Association and the County.

have defined as a priority, based on considerations about the local context.

Offering workshops in painting, kite making, hair salon,
total aCtioNs x Number of meNdes JÚNior uNits

weighing/measuring and making up; distributing clothes,
Moment of Leisure

Recife / PE

shoes and books; and lectures about the environment
and dental hygiene to the 200 children and 50 senior citizens

200
175

helped by the Cosme e Damião Dwellers’ Association.
169

Offering workshops to train 60 people in Sustainable Urban

156
150

Agricultural production, including:
— planting green vegetables and legumes shoots, together

125

“Community Vegetable

100

Garden” Project

with grade school students from a school and a kindergarten
São Paulo / SP

next to the institution;
— a lecture by an agricultural technician on organic agriculture

75

and cooperatives;
50

37

— educational video presentation on organic agriculture

34

and compost making (recycling food waste).

25

Actions
units
2012

Setting up groups of the Brazil Kitchen Program, an initiative

2011

Brazil Kitchen Program

Itaboraí / RJ

599

600

537

It teaches the population how to prepare food intelligently
and without waste.

Number of voluNteers

700

undertaken by the Sesi São Paulo Alimente-se Bem program.

Job opportuNities for former prisoN system iNmates

Former inmates in the work release scheme at Foz do Iguaçu Penitentiary

500

(PR) found a new job opportunity in 2012. They were hired for the Unila (PR)
project and work as bricklayers and helpers.

400

The project offers inmates professional training so they can specialize in a

300

certain activity in future, while also contributing towards reducing their prison
200

sentence, as for every three days of work their sentence is reduced by one day.

100

This initiative is aligned to two important people management challenges
at Mendes Júnior: the need to make up a contingent of workers at the job
2012

2011

sites and its commitment to the values of respect for human beings, which
is institutionalized at the company through social responsibility actions.
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ANNEXE 1 —
AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
— Former Inmate Program, held at the Unila Project – Recognized
by the Government of the State of Paraná
— Former Slave Laborer Program, held at the Arena Pantanal (MT)
Project – A pioneering initiative in the country that has been recognized
by the World Trade Organization – Quality at the Workplace SESI
Award – Regional MT stage.

PARTICIPATION IN EVENTS
— rio oil & gas expo 2012
Date: September 17 to 20, 2012
Venue: Riocentro – Rio de Janeiro/RJ
— mercado em Conexão
Date: October 30 and 31, 2012
Venue: Escola de Engenharia da UFMG – Belo Horizonte/MG
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ANNEXE 2 —
GLOSSARY

a

g

assessment: A leadership program that carries out a de-

gdp (gross domestic product): All the wealth produced

ordinary Nominative shares: Their holders have the right

specific purpose enterprise (spe): A business partnership

tailed diagnosis of an area and turns the biggest demands

by a country.

to vote at shareholders’ meetings and to share in a company’s

whose activity is restricted and defined and, in some cases, its

profits. Those who own these shares carry responsibilities and

lifetime can be determined. It is usually used to isolate financial

global reporting initiative (gri): An international agree-

obligations equivalent to the number of shares they have ac-

risks from the activity being developed. Mendes Júnior operates

ment created with a long-term view and whose mission is to

quired. Ordinary Nominative shares are identified by the letters

two such partnerships: Integra Offshore, which was set up to

b

prepare and disseminate the Guide to Preparing Sustainability

ON after the company’s name.

develop the Replicantes project in the pre-salt layer area and

backlog: The amount of revenue yet to be received.

Reports, which is globally and voluntarily applied by organiza-

found into qualification courses focused on the company's
business strategy.

another one for the Ring Road works in São Paulo.

tions who wish to inform their audiences about the economic,

p

C

environmental and social aspects of their activities, products

paC: The Brazilian Federal Government’s Growth Accelera-

spN: Business Selectiveness and Prioritization. A support sys-

Cat: Work-related Accident Communication.

and services.

tion Program.

tem used to validate business opportunities. Through this sys-

Corporate governance: A system through which companies

i

participation account Company (sCp): A business partner-

tunities offered by each project and take into account factors

are led and monitored. It involves decision-making and relations

information security: A concept associated to the existing or

ship that links its partners internally. It consists of two or more

that range from the accreditations of the partners involved up

among shareholders, the Administration Council, the Board of

needed protection for the data that are valuable to an organiza-

people, and one of them must necessarily be an entrepreneur

to client action longevity, for example.

Directors, independent auditors and the Fiscal Council.

tion. It involves basic aspects such as information confidential-

or an entrepreneurial partnership. It does not have autono-

ity, integrity and availability.

mous legal representation, its own equity and it is not to vis-

sso project: A project aimed at health and safety at the work-

ible to third parties.

place that seeks to eliminate accidents at Mendes Júnior by

tem, professionals can carry out deeper analyses of the oppor-

Current liquidity: An index that compares a company’s shortterm assets to its short-term debts (liabilities). It shows if in the

iso 9001: An accreditation that revamps ISO 9000 to align it

short term, usually one year, the assets available are enough to

more closely to the engineering industry.

pbqp-h: Brazilian Habitat Quality and Productivity Program.

employees through seminars, campaigns, etc.

iso 14001: A series of norms developed by the International

q

sustainable development: A concept established by the

Organization for Standardization (ISO) that sets down guide-

qmsr: Quality, Environment, Occupational Health and Safety,

United Nations Organization (UN) whose definition is expressed

lines in the field of environmental management.

and Social Responsibility. It is a fundamental Mendes Júnior

by the thought that “development must meet the needs of cur-

area that brings together the policies developed by the com-

rent generations without compromising the possibility of satis-

pany in these fields.

fying the needs of future generations".
v

adopting good practices such as raising the awareness of all

cover obligations within this time span. Current liquidity greater than one (>1) means positive net working capital.
d
defined Contribution benefits plan (pCdb): A Mendes
Júnior retirement plan that aims to guarantee better quality of

l

life to employees by offering extra retirement pay to supplement

leed: An accreditation whose acronym means Leadership in

their INSS benefits. Among its benefits, PCDB offers retirement,

Energy and Environmental Designer. It is aimed at setting down

s

disability retirement and a death pension for dependents.

environmental guidelines for constructions and it assesses crite-

sa8000: A standard that aims to enhance working conditions,

value added: It measures the wealth generated by a company

ria that range from the efficient use of water to sustainability as

ensure that workers rights are respected, and maintain dignity

based on the difference between sales revenue and the cost of

regards the location of the job site.

in working relations within both the Company and the produc-

the resources acquired from third parties.

e
ebitda: An acronym for Earnings Before Interests, Taxes,
Depreciation and Amortization.

tive chain.
N
Net profits: The balance after deducting income tax and sev-

f

sat: Work-Related Accident Insurance.

eral shareholding participations from gross profits.

fap: Insurance Accident Factor. A fee set by the Federal Con-

self-sponsorship: It is an opportunity offered to participants
o

to keep contributing to the plan and to take over the spon-

sources gathered are aimed at paying for episodes stemming

offshore: producing and looking for oil on the high seas or far

sor's share of contributions should participants lose, either par-

from risks in the work environment, accidents and work-relat-

from the coastline.

tially or totally, the sponsor's contribution. Thus, participants

stitution and paid to the Government by companies. The re-

ed illnesses, as well as special retirement benefits.

will have their future benefits guaranteed at the levels that had
ohsas 18001: An accreditation that allows companies to

fibonacci sequence: The Fibonacci succession or Fibonacci

achieve and systematize the level of performance they have set

sequence is a sequence of natural numbers in which the first

as regards Health and Safety at the Workplace.

two numbers are 0 and 1 and each number that follows always
corresponds to the sum of the preceding two numbers. It was
named after 13th century Italian mathematician Leonardo de

been previously agreed upon.
sgi: Integrated Management System, which involves the Quality, Environment, Occupational Health and Safety, and Social

onshore: Producing and looking for oil inland.

Responsibility (QMSR) Policy and guides the company’s decisions and actions.

Pisa and leads us to perfect evolution.
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ANNEXE 3 —
GRI SUMMARY
We hereby state that we are in accordance with level b as regards meeting

3.6) Boundary of the report (such as countries, divisions, subsidiaries, rented
facilities, joint ventures, suppliers).

11

page / aNsWer

3.7) Statement about any limitations on the scope or boundary of the report.

11

19

3.8) Basis for reporting as regards other facilities that can significantly affect
comparability from period to period and/or between organizations.

9, 25, 60, 61

3.9) Data and calculation measurement techniques, including hypotheses
and techniques that support the estimates applied to calculating indicators
and other information in the report.

9, 25, 60, 61

3.10) Explanation as regards the consequences of any restating of the
information supplied in previous reports and the reasons for such restatement
(such as mergers or acquisitions, changes to the period or to the year stated,
the nature of the business, and measurement methods)

9, 25, 60, 61

3.11) Significant changes when compared to previous reporting periods
as regards scope, limits or measurement methods applied in the report.

9, 25, 60, 61

the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) sustainability reporting guidelines.

strategy aNd aNalysis

1.1) A statement by the highest-ranking person within the organization
(such as director-president, Chairman of the Administration Board or equivalent
position) on how relevant sustainability is to the organization and to its strategy.

orgaNizatioNal profile

2.1) Name of the organization.

2.2) Main brands, products and/or services.

24

22, 23

2.3) The organization’s operational structure, including its main divisions,
operational units, subsidiaries and joint ventures.

24

2.4) Location of the organization's headquarters.

24

2.5) Number of countries where the organization operates and the names
of the countries where its main operations are located or are especially relevant
to the sustainability issues covered by the report.

24

2.6) Nature of ownership and legal form.

24

3.12) Table identifying the location of the information available in the report.

2.7) Markets served (including geographic discrimination, industries served
and the kind of clients/beneficiaries).

22, 23, 24

2.8) Scale of the organization (number of employees, sales or net revenues).

25

2.9) Main changes during the reporting period regarding scale, structure or
shareholding structure.

24

2.10) Awards received.

119

122, 123, 124, 125

goverNaNCe, CommitmeNt aNd eNgagemeNt

4.1) The organization’s governance structure, including committees under
the highest governance department responsible for specific tasks such
as setting strategy or supervising the organization.

34, 35

4.2) Show if the president of the highest-level governance organ is also
an executive director (and, should this be so, his/her responsibilities within
the organization's administration and the reasons for such a structure).

34

4.3) State the number of independent or non-executive members
in the highest-level governance organ.

34, 35

4.4) Mechanisms for shareholders and employees to provide recommendations
to the highest-level governance organ.

34, 38

reportiNg parameters

3.1) Period covered by the report (such as fiscal/civil year)
for the information presented.

9
stakeholder eNgagemeNt

3.2) Date of the most recent previous report (if there is one).

3.3) Cycle of report issuance (annual, biennial, etc.)

3.4) Data for contacts should the need arise for questions related
to the report and its content.

3.5) Process for defining report content (themes, priorities, stakeholders).

11
47

4.15) Basis to identify and select stakeholders to engage.

47

11

Business Communication Area
Name: Mariana Magalhães –
Communication Coordinator
Contact: (31) 2121-9400
E-mail: mendesjunior@mendesjunior.com.br
Talk to us - www.mendesjunior.com.br

maNagemeNt struCture aNd eCoNomiC performaNCe iNdiCators

EC1) Direct economic value generated and distributed, including revenues,
operational costs, employee remuneration, donations and other investments
into the community, accumulated profits and payments made to capital
providers and governments.

60, 61

14, 15, 47
1/4

GRI SuMMARy

4.14) A list of stakeholder groups engaged by the organization

2/4
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soCial performaNCe iNdiCators – humaN rights

107, 108

eNviroNmeNtal performaNCe iNdiCators

EN1) Materials used by weight or volume.

76, 77

EN3) Direct energy consumption by primary energy source

80

EN8) Total water withdrawal by primary source.

85

EN22) Total weight of waste by type and disposal method.

EN23) Number and total volume of significant spillages.

EN30) Total environmental protection expenditures and investments, by type.

HR5) Operations that have been identified in which the right to freedom of
association and collective bargaining can be running significant risks and the
measures taken to support this right.

88, 89, 90, 91

There were no significant spillages in 2012.

72, 73

soCial performaNCe iNdiCators – labor praCtiCes

LA1) Total workforce by employment type, employment contract, and region.

Mendes Júnior follows the premises
of the collective bargaining for 2011/2012.
The agreement was signed with representatives
of the Heavy Construction Industry Workers’
Union - SITICOP-MG and legalized through Union
registration at the National Register of Unions
– CNES of the Labor and Employment Ministry
under #35097.002197/91-94, which was officially
published by DOU on September 04, 1991,
and Union Registration #46000.002231/93-86,
which was officially published by DOU on August
13, 1993, which legally recognize themselves as
the legitimate representatives of the employees’
and employers’ parties as regards the Heavy
Construction Industry in the State of Minas
Gerais. All collective bargaining agreements
are signed through free negotiations and they
are fully fulfilled. No fines have been levied by
government oversight officers for any noncompliance as regards freedom of association
collective bargaining.

100, 101
soCial performaNCe iNdiCators – soCiety

LA2) Total number and rate of employee turnover by age group, gender, and region.

LA3) Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not provided to temporary
or part-time employees, by major operations.

101
SO1) Nature, scope, and effectiveness of any programs and practices
that assess and manage the impacts of operations on communities,
including entering, operating, and exiting.

106

SO8) Monetary value of significant fines and total number of non-monetary
sanctions for non-compliance with laws and regulations.

LA4) Percentage of employees covered by collective bargaining agreements.

LA6) Percentage of employees represented in formal health
and safety committees.

LA7) Rates of injury, occupational diseases, lost days, and absenteeism,
and number of work-related fatalities by region.

100%. Union agreement coverage
is limited to each union’s region/base of
action in each venue the company is present.
Some agreements are negotiated through
the employers’ union for the respective State
where the project is located. PLR agreements
are negotiated between the company
and workers’ unions.

110

PR1) Stages of product and services life cycle in which the impacts on
health and safety are assessed with a view to improving them, and the
percentage of products and services subjected to such procedures.

110, 111

LA8) Education, training, counseling, prevention, and risk-control programs
in place to assist workforce members, their families, or community members
regarding serious diseases.

103

LA10) Average hours of training per year, per employee, discriminated
by functional category.

103
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PR5) Practices related to client satisfaction, including survey results that measure
such satisfaction.

112, 113, 114, 115

There were neither fines nor sanctions in 2012

Project lifecycle at Mendes Júnior begins before
the building stage of its works by respecting
the planning of the mobilization, execution
and demobilization processes, when the safety
and health aspects regarding its labor force
are built in. Occupational safety and health
issues are identified through EAP – Analytical
Project Structure, when the main processes and
activities at each stage of the job are mapped
out and risks and dangers also become known.
Therefore, EAP is determinant factor to integrate
the various processes, building, assembly and
services activities that will be performed and to
associate them to controls and the necessary
training that will lead to good safety and health
management performance. The management of
possible changes while the activities are being
carried out is also taken into account. As a
methodology to identify, access and demonstrate
the risks of each activity, Mendes Júnior adopts
the procedure named PSSO 01 – Procedure for
Occupational Safety and Health Management.
This methodology is supported by two software
programs that define all the identification,
assessment, qualification and control criteria
required, as the company proactively seeks to
meet legal requirements and the requirements
put forth by its clients.
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Mendes Júnior

MANAGEMENT REPORT — 2012

Dear Shareholders,

In accordance with applicable law we would like to submit to your appreciation the Balance Sheet and other Financial Statements pertaining to Mendes
Júnior Trading e Engenharia S.A. (“company”) for the fiscal year 2012, together with the Independent Auditors’ Opinion.
An analysis of the macroeconomic environment

As it had already happened the year before, the construction industry felt the
effects of the international financial crisis in 2012 and, once again, it had to
deal not only with postponements as regards important projects but also face
issues related to payment flow in contracted work. In the end, these factors
compromised the results achieved by the companies.
Overall, the construction industry still achieved a higher rate of expansion
(1.4%) than the Gross Domestic Product (0.9% growth). Nevertheless, such
expansion fell far below the expectations that had been announced at the
beginning of the year.
Economic and financial performance

Company results for 2012 evolved when compared to the previous fiscal
year’s financial statements, although they remained slightly below the numbers forecast for the fiscal year. The Holding Company’s gross operational
revenues amounted to R$ 1.33 billion (for net operational revenues amounting to R$ 1.24 billion) while Ebtida rose to R$ 104.7 million and its net profit
amounted to R$ 41 million, which was higher than that for 2011.
The project portfolio increased significantly due to important new work acquired. The backlog at the end of the year amounted to R$ 5 billion, an
amount that enhances revenues perspectives for 2013, assures meeting economic goals and signals a time of better results for the coming fiscal years.
Two of the projects that were won in 2012 should be highlighted: the contract that was signed with the consortium made up by Petrobras, BG Group
and Petrogal Brasil for the topside building and integration of platforms for
pre-salt layer expansion in the Santos (SP) Basin, known as Replicantes; and
the expansion project for the Holcim cement plant in Barroso (MG), whose
production capacity will be increased from 1.3 million tons/year to 3.6 million tons/year.
The fiscal year was also notable for negotiations to return to our operations abroad. The company was a pioneer in its industry as regards winning large works abroad and it is currently negotiating its presence in Latin
America and in Africa.
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Integrated Management System (SGI)

Perspectives for 2013

The Integrated Management System (SGI) is one of the pillars that ensure ef-

This year's perspectives are favorable. The company has won important con-

ficiency as we perform our activities and brings together concepts and guide-

tracts in the first months of 2013. In Pernambuco, the company has been hired

lines related to sustainability dimensions.

to work on Transposição Meta 1 Norte, a job to work on over 130 km of the

Mendes Júnior

São Francisco River Integration project. In São Paulo, the company will particiThe Quality, Environment, Health Care and Occupational Safety, and Social Re-

pate in the implementation of Plot 1 of Rodoanel Norte and it will build over

sponsibility (QMSR) policy is the System’s main document and it guides all the

1,200 housing units.

initiatives undertaken. In 2012, the company consolidated the QMSR system’s
focus of actions as technical support and facilitator in developing new busi-

One of the challenges the company faces is that of adapting to the new dy-

nesses and as a basis to generate results.

namics of public sector contracts, which emphasizes the concessions and
Public Private Partnerships (PPPs) market. The company has been strongly posi-

The company is accredited in the norms that refer to Quality (ISO 9001),

tioning itself to operate in these modalities, as they are a trend that has already

Environmental Management (ISO 14001), Health Care and Work Safety (OH-

been signaled by both federal and state governments. Thus, the company has

SAS 18001), and Social Responsibility (SA 8000), and these documents rep-

been working towards reformulating its organizational structure to prepare

resent an important differential in project development. It is also accredited

for this new public bidding format on the market as it focuses not only on civil

in production quality in housing by the Brazilian Habitat Quality and Produc-

construction but also on executive projects that deal with engineering and that

tivity Program (PBQP-H), which encompasses the range of building, basic

include managing the business. Furthermore, it has created two new depart-

sanitation, roads and special road artwork works and over 3,600 documents

ments at the beginning of this year - Foreign Business and Health Care, as it

that attest to the technical competence and experience the company has

aims to broaden the company's portfolio of activities and customers.

acquired in various engineering and construction segments throughout its
six decades of activities.

In 2013, the company has also launched a movement that aims to enhance its
corporate governance and optimize decision-making and business develop-

People Management

ment. One of the landmarks of this movement was the setting up of a Guid-

The characteristics inherent to carrying out the projects developed by the com-

ing Committee.

pany demand a large contingent of qualified professionals. This fact comes up
against the current reality of Brazilian labor, which is one of a lack of people

As it reaches six decades of excellence in engineering, the company finds itself

appropriately educated and skilled in technical areas. To guarantee support

ready for a new stage in its history and prepared to win back markets and

and expansion for the business, the Human Resources Director's Office under-

grow sustainably.

took the second Human Capital Mapping cycle in 2012, which will allow the
company to learn about its collaborators’ skills and position them better by up-

Thank you

dating the register of their competencies, aspirations and professional paths,

We would like to thank our shareholders, collaborators and partners for the

mapping the possibilities for in-house positioning and consolidating its assess-

results we have achieved in 2012.

ment. Furthermore, the company has invested in restructuring and broadening
the scope of its Young Professionals program to prepare them to take over

The Board of Directors

strategic positions in the near future.
The company has also developed an integrated people management system
that is now being implemented. It is a tool that will make it possible to link
the various human resources processes and it will influence the quality, the
speed and the security of information as regards human capital throughout
the country.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the
Shareholders and Management of
Mendes Júnior Trading e Engenharia S.A.
São Paulo - SP

We have audited the individual and consolidated financial statements of

Opinion on the individual financial statements

Mendes Júnior Trading e Engenharia S.A. (“Company”) which include the

In our opinion, the individual financial statements referred to above present fairly,

balance sheet as of December 31, 2012 and the related statements of income,

in all material respects, the financial position of Mendes Júnior Trading e En-

comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the

genharia S.A. as of December 31, 2012, the results of its operations and its cash

year then ended, as well as a summary of the main accounting practices and

flows for the year then ended, in conformity with Brazilian accounting practices.

other explanatory notes.
Opinion on the consolidated financial statements
Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present

The Company's management is responsible for the fair presentation and

fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Mendes

preparation of the individual financial statements in accordance with Brazil-

Júnior Trading e Engenharia S.A. as of December 31, 2012, and the con-

ian accounting practices and of the consolidated financial statements ac-

solidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended,

cording to the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by

according to the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by

the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Brazilian account-

the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and to the Brazilian ac-

ing practices and for the internal controls considered necessary to allow the

counting practices.

preparation of financial statements free of material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Other issues
Statement of value added

Independent auditors’ responsibility

We have also examined the Statement of Value Added, individual and con-

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these individual and consolidated

solidated, for the year ended December 31, 2012 presented as supplementary

financial statements based on our audit, conducted in accordance with Brazil-

information by the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), which do

ian and international auditing standards. These auditing standards require that

not require the presentation of the statement of value added. This statement

we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements

was subjected to the same auditing procedures previously described and, in

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the

our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the individual

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

and consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain evidence supporting the

Audit of the previous year’s amounts

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected

The individual and consolidated financial statements of Mendes Júnior Trad-

depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of mate-

ing e Engenharia S.A. for the year ended December 31, 2011 presented for

rial misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In

comparison purposes, were previously audited by us and our report thereon,

making those risk assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the

dated March 01, 2013, was unmodified.

fair preparation and presentation of the Company’s financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,

The accompanying financial statements have been translated into English for

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

the convenience of readers outside Brazil.

Company’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

São Paulo, March 01, 2013.

estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.

BDO RCS Auditores Independentes SS
CRC 2 SP 013846/O-1

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appro-

Francisco de Paula dos Reis Júnior

priate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Accountant CRC 1 SP 139268/O-6
Paulo Eduardo Santos
Accountant CRC 1 MG 078750/O-3 S - SP
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Balance sheets
As of December 31, 2012 and 2011

(Amounts in thousands of Brazilian Reais, unless otherwise stated)

assets
company

Consolidated

Note

2012

2011

2012

2011

Cash and cash equivalents

5

72,700

93,756

89,124

94,295

Trade accounts receivable

6

457,663

183,594

496,218

223,890

Notes receivable

7

114,856

118,107

114,856

118,107

27,910

20,745

27,910

20,745

39,950

82,222

39,986

82,427

43,803

20,324

44,111

20,860

756,882

518,748

812,205

560,324

Current

Advances to suppliers
Inventories

8

Other current assets

Noncurrent
Related-party transactions

9

1,097

18,908

1,814

19,697

Notes receivable

7

131,377

42,276

131,377

42,276

Investments

10

40,666

50,363

2,957

31,662

Fixed assets, net

11

35,956

28,132

36,098

28,188

Intangible assets

12

24,870

22,715

24,870

22,715

233,966

162,394

197,116

144,538

990,848

681,142

1,009,321

704,862

Total assets
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance sheets
As of December 31, 2012 and 2011

(Amounts in thousands of Brazilian Reais, unless otherwise stated)

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
company

Consolidated

Note

2012

2011

2012

2011

Loans and financings

13

134,750

70,487

134,750

70,487

Suppliers and contractors

14

117,648

74,566

128,945

76,873

Payroll and social charges

15

50,132

49,949

51,219

50,390

Taxes payable

16

50,781

15,321

53,598

17,504

Customers’ advances

65,163

1,154

59,169

1,175

Other accounts payable

6,004

4,490

6,350

5,177

424,478

215,967

434,031

221,606

Current

Noncurrent
Loans and financings

13

55,289

17,357

55,289

17,357

Taxes payable

17

48,334

26,437

48,334

26,437

Provision for contingencies

18

4,229

5,443

4,229

5,443

Actuarial liabilities

20

6,540

5,361

6,540

5,361

666

844

666

844

115,058

55,442

115,058

55,442

235,000

235,000

235,000

235,000

14,094

11,948

14,094

11,948

193,809

153,027

193,809

153,027

8,254

9,758

8,254

9,758

155

—

155

—

451,312

409,733

451,312

409,733

—

—

8,920

18,081

451,312

409,733

460,232

427,814

990,848

681,142

1,009,321

704,862

Notes payable

Shareholders’ equity
Capital stock

19.1

Statutory reserve
Retained income reserve
Asset and liability valuation adjustments
Cumulative translation adjustments
Shareholders’ equity attributed to controlling shareholders
Non-controlling interest

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

19.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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statement of income
for the years ended on December 31, 2012 and 2011

(Amounts in thousands of Brazilian Reais, unless otherwise stated)

company

Consolidated

Note

2012

2011

2012

2011

22

1,239,948

1,248,693

1,299,818

1,258,008

(1,043,420)

(1,095,499)

(1,085,419)

(1,102,763)

196,528

153,194

214,399

155,245

(116,166)

(100,430)

(116,512)

(101,950)

Equity in earnings of controlled companies

23,166

6,071

14,472

5,579

Other operating revenues (expenses), net

(8,049)

(7,182)

(8,009)

(6,069)

(101,049)

(101,541)

(110,049)

(102,440)

95,479

51,653

104,350

52,805

(38,836)

(27,572)

(38,733)

(27,573)

(38,836)

(27,572)

(38,733)

(27,573)

56,643

24,081

65,617

25,232

(3,736)

(8,615)

(5,674)

(8,876)

(11,483)

4,848

(11,483)

4,848

(15,219)

(3,767)

(17,157)

(4,028)

41,424

20,314

48,460

21,204

Controlling shareholders

41,424

20,314

Non-controlling interest

7,036

890

48,460

21,204

Net sales from continuing activities
Cost of services and sub-contracted work
Gross profit
Operating revenues (expenses)
Administrative and general

23

Operating income before financial revenue (expenses), net
Financial revenues (expenses), net

24

Income before income and social contribution taxes
Current and deferred income and social contribution taxes
Current
Deferred

Net income for the year

25

Income attributed to:

Number of shares at year end (per thousand shares)
Earnings per shares – R$

205,058

205,058

205,058

205,058

0.20

0.10

0.20

0.10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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statements of changes in shareholders' equity
for the years ended on December 31, 2012 and 2011

(Amounts in thousands of Brazilian Reais, unless otherwise stated)

Total

—

—

389,419

17,191

406,610

—

—

—

—

(1,499)

—

1,499

—

—

—

Net income for the year

—

—

—

—

—

—

20,314

20,314

890

21,204

Statutory reserve

—

1,091

—

—

—

—

(1,091)

—

—

—

Special reserve for dividends not distributed

—

—

5,181

—

—

—

(5,181)

—

—

—

Appropriated retained earnings

—

—

—

15,541

—

—

(15,541)

—

—

—

235,000

11,948

17,157

135,870

9,758

—

—

409,733

18,081

427,814

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

(16,197)

(16,197)

—

—

—

—

(1,504)

—

1,504

—

—

—

Recognition of cumulative translation adjustments

—

—

—

—

—

155

—

155

—

155

Net income for the year

—

—

—

—

—

—

41,424

41,424

7,036

48,460

Statutory reserve

—

2,146

—

—

—

—

(2,146)

—

—

—

Special reserve for dividends not distributed

—

—

10,195

—

—

—

(10,195)

—

—

—

Appropriated retained earnings

—

—

—

30,587

—

—

(30,587)

—

—

—

235,000

14,094

27,352

166,457

8,254

155

—

451,312

8,920

460,232

Realization of asset and liability
valuation adjustments

Balance as of December 31, 2011
Dividends payout
Realization of asset and liability
valuation adjustments

Balance as of December 31, 2012

(accumulated losses)

11,257

Retained earnings

120,329

adjustment

11,976

Cumulative translation

10,857

adjustments

Non-controlling interest

to controlling shareholders

Shareholders’ equity attributed

Asset and liability valuation

235,000

Balance as of December 31, 2010

not distributed

Statutory reserve

Appropriated retained earnings

Comprehensive income

Capital stock

Special reserve for dividends

Income Reserve

Description

14

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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statements of cash flows — 1/2
for the years ended on December 31, 2012 and 2011

(Amounts in thousands of Brazilian Reais, unless otherwise stated)

company

Consolidated

2012

2011

2012

2011

56,643

24,081

65,617

25,232

Depreciation and amortization

9,224

9,733

9,237

9,780

Write-offs of fixed assets

8,484

2,304

8,484

2,304

Income and Social Contribution taxes paid

(15,219)

(3,767)

(17,157)

(4,028)

Equity in earnings of controlled companies

23,166

6,071

14,472

5,579

Actuarial liabilities

1,179

1,799

1,179

1,799

Recognition (reversal) of provision for contingencies

(1,214)

(3,877)

(1,214)

(3,877)

82,263

36,344

80,618

36,789

Trade accounts receivable

(274,069)

(92,779)

(273,755)

(93,960)

Notes receivable

(85,850)

(14,127)

(85,850)

(14,127)

Advances to suppliers

(7,165)

75,388

(7,165)

75,347

Inventories

42,272

(74,703)

42,441

(74,908)

Other receivables

(23,479)

1,180

(23,251)

720

(348,291)

(105,041)

(347,580)

(106,928)

Suppliers and contractors

43,082

(23,895)

52,072

(22,620)

Payroll and social charges

183

(7,794)

829

(7,353)

Taxes payable

57,357

9,467

57,991

9,131

Customers’ advances

64,009

(7,558)

59,421

(7,593)

1,336

2,754

995

2,661

165,967

(27,026)

171,308

(25,774)

Income before income and social contribution taxes
Adjustments to reconcile income before income and social
contribution taxes to net cash provided by operating activities:

(Increase)/decrease in operating assets

Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities

Other accounts payable

statements of cash flows

statements of cash flows
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statements of cash flows — 2/2
for the years ended on December 31, 2012 and 2011

(Amounts in thousands of Brazilian Reais, unless otherwise stated)

company

Consolidated

2012

2011

2012

2011

(100,061)

(95,723)

(95,654)

(95,913)

Acquisition of fixed and intangible assets, net of loans

(27,687)

(8,774)

(27,786)

(8,830)

Investments in controlled companies

(13,314)

(9,093)

14,388

(8,110)

17,811

(11,661)

17,883

(12,033)

(23,190)

(29,528)

4,485

(28,973)

—

—

(16,197)

—

Long-term loans raised

102,195

41,930

102,195

41,930

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

102,195

41,930

85,998

41,930

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, net

(21,056)

(83,321)

(5,171)

(82,956)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

93,756

177,077

94,295

177,251

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

72,700

93,756

89,124

94,295

(21,056)

(83,321)

(5,171)

(82,956)

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds (payments) from related parties
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Paid dividends

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, net
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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statements of value added
for the years ended on December 31, 2012 and 2011

(Amounts in thousands of Brazilian Reais, unless otherwise stated)

company

Consolidated

2012

2011

2012

2011

1,334,555

1,348,543

1,397,777

1,358,362

4,320

13,834

4,320

14,349

1,338,875

1,362,377

1,402,097

1,372,711

Materials, services from third parties and other

(659,817)

(631,610)

(690,482)

(636,852)

Total input acquired from third parties

(659,817)

(631,610)

(690,482)

(636,852)

3 — Gross value added (1-2)

679,058

730,767

711,615

735,859

4 — Depreciation

(9,224)

(9,733)

(9,237)

(9,780)

5 — Net value added (3-4)

669,834

721,034

702,378

726,079

23,166

6,071

14,472

5,579

4,131

19,817

4,234

19,820

27,297

25,888

18,706

25,399

697,131

746,922

721,084

751,478

Personnel

355,801

363,141

362,510

364,893

Taxes, fees and contributions

185,056

186,896

191,908

187,975

Return on debt capital

114,850

176,571

118,206

177,406

Net income for the year

41,424

20,314

48,460

21,204

Total distribution of value added

697,131

746,922

721,084

751,478

1 — Revenues
Services and resale of materials
Others
Total revenues
2 — Input acquired from third parties

6 — Value added received in transfer
Equity in earnings of controlled companies
Financial revenues
Total value added received in transfer
7 — Total value added to be distributed (5 + 6)
8 — Distribution of value added

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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statements of comprehensive income
for the years ended on December 31, 2012 and 2011

(Amounts in thousands of Brazilian Reais, unless otherwise stated)

company

Consolidated

2012

2011

2012

2011

41,424

20,314

48,460

21,204

(1,503)

(1,499)

(1,503)

(1,499)

155

—

155

—

40,076

18,815

47,112

19,705

Controlling shareholders

40,076

18,815

Non-controlling interest

7,036

890

47,112

19,705

Net income for the year
Other comprehensive income
Realization of asset and liability valuation adjustments
Recognition of cumulative translation adjustment
Total comprehensive income for the year attributed to

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes to the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements include operations of the Company and

for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

the following controlled and jointly-controlled companies:

(Amounts in thousands of Brazilian Reais, unless otherwise stated)
% of ownership interest
1. Operations

Mendes Júnior Trading e Engenharia S.A. (the “Company”) is a closely-held cor-

Company

2012

2011

SCP ETA Brasília

75.00%

75.00%

Integra Off Shore Ltda.

51.00%

0.00%

SCP Boulevard

56.00%

56.00%

SCP Saneamento Arrudas

50.00%

50.00%

SCP Torre TV Digital

50.00%

50.00%

Rodoanel Sul 5 Engª Ltda.

28.57%

28.57%

poration headquartered in São Paulo, state capital, engaged in the construction
industry, industrial and electromechanical assembly, management of ventures,
trade, exports, imports and other activities related to its main purpose, included
in its bylaws. Its controlled and jointly-controlled companies have, substantially,
the same activity of the controlling company.
2. Basis and presentation of the financial statements

The individual and consolidated financial statements have been prepared and
are presented in conformity with Brazilian accounting practices which comprise
the provisions of Law No. 6.404/76 – Brazilian Corporate Law, the changes
introduced by Laws No. 11.638/07 and 11.941/09, and the pronouncements,
interpretations and guidelines issued by Committee of Accounting Pronouncements (CPC) applied consistently for the presented periods.
The financial statements have been prepared taking into consideration the

The Board of Directors authorized the conclusion and approved the financial

historical cost as base value.

statements as of December 31, 2012 on March 01, 2013.

statements of comprehensive income — Notes to the financial statements
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3. Summary of significant accounting practices

Trade accounts receivable: they refer to services performed and rep-

3.1. Financial instruments recorded in assets

resent estimated realization values. If the collection period is one year or

The Company and its controlled companies initially recognize loans, receiv-

less, trade accounts receivable are classified as current assets. Otherwise,

ables and deposits on the date they are originated. All other financial assets

they are stated in non-current assets. Trade accounts receivable are ini-

(including assets designated at fair value through income) are initially recog-

tially recognized at fair value, less impairment, when necessary (Note 6);

Mendes Júnior

nized at the negotiation date in which the Company becomes a party to the
instrument agreement provisions.

Notes receivable: they are recorded at acquisition cost according to
contracts and/or other pertinent documents. Amounts stated in the fi-

The Company writes off a financial asset when the contractual rights on the

nancial statements are lower than the amounts actually realized (Note 7).

cash flows of the asset expire, or when the Company transfers the rights for receiving contractual cash flows on a financial asset in a transaction, in which vir-

3.2. Inventories

tually all risks and benefits of ownership of the financial asset are transferred:

Inventories of materials for application in construction work (storeroom) and
of merchandise for resale, also for construction work, are evaluated and stated

Financial instruments stated at fair value through income (loss):

at acquisition average cost, less recoverable taxes, when applicable. An adjust-

A financial asset is classified at fair value through income if classified as

ment to recoverable value is made when the realizable value of inventories

held for trading and designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial

(considering taxes and selling expenses) is lower than recorded values (Note 8).

assets are designated at fair value through income if the Company manages these investments and makes purchase and sale decisions based on

3.3. Investments

their fair value. Transaction costs are recognized in income as incurred.

The Company holds interest in controlled companies and other companies in

Financial assets registered at fair value through income are measured at

which exercises control along with other shareholders, whose statements were

fair value, and changes on the value of such assets are recognized in the

consolidated (see Note 2). The interests in jointly-controlled companies are

income for the year. When the Company has them, financial investments

consolidated at proportional consolidation method.

included in cash and cash equivalents are considered as such;
Ownership interests mentioned in the individual financial statements of the
Loans and receivables:

controlling company are recognized under the equity method (Note 10).

Loans and receivables consist of financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and not quoted in an active market. They are initially rec-

3.4. Fixed assets

ognized at fair value plus all other transaction costs that are attributable.

Pursuant to “CPC Technical Pronouncement No. 27 – Fixed Assets” and ICPC

After their initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at am-

Technical Interpretation No. 10 – Interpretation on First-time adoption to Fixed

ortized cost through the effective interest method, less any impairment

Assets and to Investment Property”, the Company verified the fair value of its

losses. Trade accounts receivable, rights and notes receivable are consid-

fixed assets and found a significant difference referring to assets registered

ered as such.

under Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles. Accordingly, it registered them at
fair value, based on valuations made by technical appraisers with extensive

Financial assets are classified upon their initial recognition, when the Company

experience in evaluating goods of this nature.

becomes a party to the instrument agreement provisions, into one of the following four categories: (a) financial assets at fair value through income; (b)

The tax effects of these valuations were recognized in compliance with ICPC

loans and receivables; (c) held-to-maturity investments; and (d) available for

No. 10 and “CPC Technical Pronouncement No. 32 – Tax on Income”. As for

sale. The classification of the financial asset into one of those categories de-

the other items of fixed assets, no significant difference was found between

pends on its nature and purpose.

their book value and fair value.

Financial assets that are subject to contractual or legal indexation are monthly

Depreciation is calculated under the straight-line method at rates which take

updated according to the applicable index. Gains and losses arising from mon-

into account the estimated useful lives and residual value of the assets by

etary variations are recognized in income on the accrual basis. The Company

the end of their useful lives. When applicable, expenses on renovation of

did not enter into derivative agreements and/or other risk instruments.

fixed assets are incorporated only if the economic benefits related to these
expenses are probable and values can be reliably measured. Repair and main-

Cash and cash equivalents: they include bank deposits and highly liq-

tenance expenses are recognized directly in income when incurred. The re-

uid financial notes falling due within or less than 90 days and with irrel-

sidual values and estimated useful lives of assets are revised and adjusted, if

evant risk of market value variation, which are stated at cost plus interest

necessary, at the balance sheet date. The residual value of fixed asset items

earned. They are used for managing short-term commitments (Note 5);

is written down to recoverable value, in case the residual value exceeds the
recoverable amount (Note 11).

Notes to the financial statements
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3.5. Intangible assets

Discount to present value

Intangible assets refer, substantially, to mining rights which is an activity that

Short-and long-term monetary assets and liabilities are discounted to pres-

also makes part of the Company’s purpose and whose exploring is intended

ent value when the effect is considered material with respect to the finan-

in the future. They are recorded at cost incurred in operation. The recorded

cial statements.

Mendes Júnior

amount does not exceed economic substance of the right. (Note 12).
3.9. Corporate Income Tax (IRPJ) and Social Contribution Tax (CSLL)
3.6. Impairment loss

IRPJ and CSLL are calculated pursuant to the tax legislation in effect and

The Company and its controlled companies review the book values of its assets

considering the add-backs and deductions determined by law. If applicable,

at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impair-

pursuant to CPC 32, deferred tax credits are recognized on temporary add-

ment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated

backs that shall become deductible when realized on income and social con-

to determine the amount of impairment loss, if any, according to criteria de-

tribution tax losses.

fined in Technical Pronouncement CPC No. 01 – Impairment. An impairment
loss is recognized immediately in the statement of income.

Realization of the balance of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting
period and, when it is no longer probable that future taxable income will be

3.7. Financial instruments recorded in liabilities

calculated to allow the recovery of the whole asset or of part of it, the balance

All financial instruments recorded in liabilities were recognized in the Com-

is adjusted by the amount expected to be realized.

pany’s and its controlled companies’ balance sheets. Financial liabilities are
recognized as from the date the Company assumes a contractual obligation

Tax charges (current and deferred) are recognized in income, except when

of a financial instrument. When recognized, they are initially recorded at fair

it corresponds to values recorded under “Other comprehensive income”, or

value plus transaction costs directly attributable to their acquisition or issue.

directly in shareholders' equity; hypothesis in which taxes are also recognized

The Company’s financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost. The main

under “Other comprehensive income” or directly in shareholders' equity, re-

financial liabilities recognized by the Company are: loans and financing, sup-

spectively. (Note 25).

pliers and contractors.
3.10. Benefits to employees – Private pension plan
Loans are initially recognized at fair value, net of incurred transaction costs and

The Company has benefit plans to employees, briefly: Retirement plans (regu-

then measured at amortized cost.

lar, early-retirement, for disability) and survivorship benefit; health insurance
and group life insurance.

Any difference between amounts raised (net of transaction costs) and the
settlement amount is recognized in the statement of income during the pe-

The actuarial liabilities with pension and retirement benefits plans are provi-

riod in which loans are outstanding, using the effective interest rate method.

sioned based on actuarial calculations prepared annually by an independent

Loans are recorded as current liabilities when they are to be paid within 12

actuary in accordance with the method of projected credit unit, net of the

months from the balance sheet date and as non-current liabilities when be-

plan's assurance assets, when applicable, and the corresponding costs are

yond such period.

recognized during the employees' accrual period. Possible surpluses with employee benefit plans are also accounted for, and they are recognized up to

Financial liabilities that are subject to contractual or legal indexation are

the probable amount of decrease in future payments by the sponsor for such

monthly updated according to the applicable index. Gains and losses arising

plans. The projected credit unit method considers each service period as gen-

from monetary variations are recognized in income on the accrual basis.

erators of an additional benefit unit, which are then accumulated for the calculation of the final liability. Actuarial gains and losses arising from adjustments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported on the

and changes in actuarial assumptions for the pension and retirement benefit

balance sheet when, and only when, the Company is legally entitled to offset

plans are directly recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

the amounts and has the intention to settle them on a net basis or simultaneously realize the asset and settle the liability.

Pursuant to Brazilian Securities and Exchange Commission (CVM) Resolution
No. 600 of October 7, 2011, which approved the CPC Technical Pronounce-

3.8. Provisions (contingent liabilities)

ment No. 33, the Company recognized the effects of these accounting prac-

Provisions are recognized for present obligations (legal or assumed) resulting

tices on the financial statements under comprehensive Income (Note 20).

from past events, when it is possible to estimate their amounts with reliability
and whose settlement is probable. The amount recognized as a provision is the

3.11. Revenue recognition

best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of

Service revenues (construction work) and resale of goods are only recognized

the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties (Note 18).

when: (i) the risks and benefits arising from the transaction that are transferred

Notes to the financial statements
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to the contracting party; (ii) their value can be reliably estimated; and (iii) it

information obtained in accounting records which are the basis for preparation

is probable that economic benefits arising from the transaction flow to the

of the financial statements and follows the provisions included in CPC 09 –

Company and its controlled companies. Financial revenues are recognized on

Statement of value added.

Mendes Júnior

the accrual basis.
4. Significant judgments, estimates and assumptions

Revenues and costs of construction agreements are recognized based on the

Preparation of financial statements requires the Management to make esti-

conclusion stage of the agreement by the end of the period, measured at

mates and to adopt assumptions according to its best judgment, based on

the proportion of incurred costs in relation to the budgeted total costs of the

experience and other significant factors which affect the values presented for

agreement. Variations in the costs of direct labor, claims and payment of incen-

assets and liabilities, as well as revenue, costs and expenses. The settlement of

tives are included up to the moment such costs can be reliably measured and

transactions involving those estimates may result in amounts significantly dif-

their receipt is probable.

ferent from those recorded in the financial statements.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be reliably estimated,

Underlying estimates and assumptions are periodically reviewed. Effects aris-

the contract revenue is recognized only to the extent that contract costs in-

ing from reviews of accounting estimates are recognized in the period when

curred are expected to be recoverable. The costs of each contract are recog-

estimates are reviewed, if the review affects only this period, or also for subse-

nized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. In case the current

quent periods, if the review affects current and future periods.

incurred costs, plus recognized income and less recognized losses, exceed advances received, the difference is recognized as “trade accounts receivable”.

The main judgments and estimates made by the Management in the preparation of the financial statements, and those which most affect the recognized

If the advances received, according to progress of construction, exceed

amounts in these financial statements are as follows:

the current incurred costs plus recognized income and less losses, the difference is recognized as a liability. Amounts received before performance

4.1. Impairment loss

of the respective work, considered advances, are recorded in the balance

In case the existence of objective evidence or combined effects of internal or

sheet as a liability.

external events that affect the realization of an asset, the Company and its
controlled companies recognize impairment losses in the financial statements.

Amounts billed for the work performed, but not yet paid by client, are recorded in the balance sheet as assets, under the caption “Trade accounts receivable

4.2. Valuation of financial instruments

and others” (Note 22).

Information for the main assumptions used to determine the fair value of financial instruments is provided in specific notes. The Management believes

3.12. Earnings per share

that selected valuation techniques and the assumptions used are appropriate

Earnings per share are presented according to the weighted average of the

to determine the fair value of financial instruments.

number of existing shares at balance sheet date in conformity with the provisions of Law No. 6.404/76 – Brazilian Corporate Law, amended by Laws No.

4.3. Provisions

11.638/07 and 11.941/08. There are no financial or equity instruments that can

The amounts accounted for as provisions are the best estimate of the amounts

potentially dilute the number of shares.

required to settle the obligation at the end of each reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties.

3.13. Functional and reporting currency
The individual and consolidated financial statements are presented using the

4.4. Asset and liability contingencies

currency for the economic environment in which the Company operates (func-

Records of asset and liability contingencies, when applicable, are realized in

tional currency). Assets in foreign currency are firstly recorded at the func-

conformity with CPC 25 – Provisions, contingent liabilities and assets, and the

tional currency exchange rate prevailing at transaction date. Exchange rate

judgments related to their realization amounts are supported on experts’ ap-

gains (losses) are recorded in the statement of income. There are no liabilities

praisal report and based on the opinion of the Company’s and its controlled

indexed at foreign currency.

companies’ legal advisors.

3.14. Statement of Value Added

5. Cash and cash equivalents

The purpose of this statement is to evidence the values created by the Com-

Balances of the caption “Cash and banks” consist of imprest cash fund and

pany (and controlled companies) and its distribution in the year. It is presented

amounts available in bank accounts in the Country.

as supplementary information for the financial statements, as required by Brazilian Corporate Law. The statement of value added was prepared according to

Notes to the financial statements
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Financial investments mainly correspond to investments bearing interest at

8. Inventories

100.0% to 105.0% of Interbank Deposit Rate (CDI). They have high liquidity

These refer to inventories of materials acquired to be used in construction

and their market values are similar to these stated below:

works (storeroom) and merchandise to be resold also to clients of construction

Mendes Júnior

works. The amounts are described below:
company

Consolidated
company

2012

2011

2012

2011

Cash and bank accounts

47,008

22,033

48,371

22,572

Financial investments

25,692

71,723

40,753

71,723

Total

72,700

93,756

89,124

94,295

Consolidated

2012

2011

2012

2011

Storeroom

23,246

14,313

23,282

14,518

Goods for resales

16,704

67,909

16,704

67,909

Total

39,950

82,222

39,986

82,427

6. Trade accounts receivable

The balance of trade accounts receivable results from transactions of construc-

9. Related-party transactions

tion services and resale of merchandise:

The transactions between the Company and related parties refer to trade and
intercompany accounts. The amounts of these transactions are as follows:
company

Consolidated

2012

2011

2012

2011

Public clients

449,666

176,618

488,221

216,914

Private clients

7,997

6,976

7,997

6,976

457,663

183,594

496,218

223,890

Total

company

Consolidated

2012

2011

2012

2011

Associated companies

834

15,919

834

15,919

Consortiums

263

2,989

980

3,778

1,097

18,908

1,814

19,697

Total
7. Notes receivable (short- and long-term)

These mainly refer to notes receivable from government entities. The Company
adopts all applicable procedures to receive its credits, by means of negotiations
and filling of lawsuits, on which it has obtained favorable decisions. The Company’s legal counselors consider as remote the possibility of an unfavorable
outcome in the suits filed by the Company against public and private entities.
The stated amounts are recorded at historical value and are lower than those
which have been realized:

company

Consolidated

2012

2011

2012

2011

Short-term

114,856

118,107

114,856

118,107

Long-term

131,377

42,276

131,377

42,276

Total

246,233

160,383

246,233

160,383

Notes to the financial statements
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10. Investments

The assessed investments, as described in Note 3.3, their movement, and
financial information related to the investments made are described below:

Shareholder's equity

Ownership interest %

Investment

Companies

2012

2011

2012

2011

2012

2011

Mendes Junior Uruguay S/A

4,546

4,190

100.00

100.00

4,546

4,190

111,612

134,722

28.57

28.57

31,888

38,490

4,232

7,683

40,666

50,363

Rodoanel Sul 5 Engenharia Ltda.
Interest in Special Purpose Entities (SCP)

11. Fixed assets

Breakdown and changes in fixed asset accounts are stated below:

company
Mach., equip.

Others

Total

25,433

5,005

31,655

331

3,584

4,599

8,514

—

(590)

(8,254)

(889)

(9,733)

Write-off

—

(2)

(342)

(1,960)

(2,304)

Balances as of December 31, 2011

119

837

20,421

6,755

28,132

Acquisition

594

537

20,717

3,684

25,532

Depreciation

—

(296)

(8,151)

(777)

(9,224)

Write-off

—

(182)

(6,315)

(1,987)

(8,484)

Balances as of December 31, 2012

713

896

26,672

7,675

35,956

Annual depreciation rates %

—

4

20

10

Plots of land

Buildings

Balances as of December 31, 2010

119

1,098

Acquisition

—

Depreciation

Notes to the financial statements
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Consolidated								
Mach., equip.

Others

Total

25,480

5,005

31,702

331

3,607

4,632

8,570

—

(590)

(8,301)

(889)

(9,780)

Write-off

—

(2)

(342)

(1,960)

(2,304)

Balances as of December 31, 2011

119

837

20,444

6,788

28,188

Acquisition

594

537

20,806

3,694

25,631

Depreciation

—

(296)

(8,160)

(781)

(9,237)

Write-off

—

(182)

(6,315)

(1,987)

(8,484)

713

896

26,775

7,714

36,098

—

4

20

10

Plots of land

Buildings

Balances as of December 31, 2010

119

1,098

Acquisition

—

Depreciation

Balances as of December 31, 2012
Annual depreciation rates %

and vehicles

There are no financing agreements linked to the acquisition of fixed assets
in 2011 and 2012.
12. Intangible assets

Breakdown and changes in intangible asset accounts are stated below:

Company

Mining rights

Balances as of December 31, 2010

Other
intangible assets

Consolidated

Total

Mining rights

Other
intangible assets

Total

22,150

305

22,455

22,150

305

22,455

—

260

260

—

260

260

Balances as of December 31, 2011

22,150

565

22,715

22,150

565

22,715

Total cost

22,150

565

22,715

22,150

565

22,715

Book value

22,150

565

22,715

22,150

565

22,715

Balances as of December 31, 2011

22,150

565

22,715

22,150

565

22,715

—

2,155

2,155

—

2,155

2,155

Balances as of December 31, 2012

22,150

2,720

24,870

22,150

2,720

24,870

Total cost

22,150

2,720

24,870

22,150

2,720

24,870

Book value

22,150

2,720

24,870

22,150

2,720

24,870

Acquisition

Acquisition
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13. Loans and financings

16. Taxes payable – short-term

Loans and financings are guaranteed by receivables, endorsements and prom-

Taxes payable refer to current taxes - Tax on services (ISSQN), Taxes on sales

issory notes. Financial charges range from CDI + 0.165% per month to CDI +

(COFINS and PIS), IRPJ, CSLL and taxes in installments:

Mendes Júnior

1.0% per month. The long-term portion matures in July 2014. The short- and
long-term amounts are the following:
company
company

Consolidated

Consolidated

2012

2011

2012

2011

Current taxes

44,385

9,691

47,202

11,874

2012

2011

2012

2011

Short-term portion

134,750

70,487

134,750

70,487

Taxes in installments

6,396

5,630

6,396

5,630

Long-term portion

55,289

17,357

55,289

17,357

Total

50,781

15,321

53,598

17,504

190,039

87,844

190,039

87,844

Total

17. Taxes payable – long-term

Law No. 11.941/09, has provided taxpayers with a new installment payment of
14. Suppliers and contractors

debts managed by the Brazilian Revenue Service (RFB), including social security,

Balances of suppliers and contractors, stated per type of supply, are the following:

and those with the National Treasury Attorney General (PGFN), including the
remaining balance of the consolidated Tax Debt Refinancing Program – REFIS
(Law No. 9.964/00), the from Special Tax Debt Installment Payment Program

company

Consolidated

- PAES (Law No. 10.684/03) and the Extraordinary Tax Debt Installment Payment Program - PAEX (Executive Act No. 303/06), in addition to conventional

2012

2011

2012

2011

62,759

47,065

74,056

49,372

installment payments provided for in article 38 of Law No. 8.212/91 and article
10 of Law No. 10.522/02.

Materials and equipment

The Company required the inclusion of the debts, previously included in PAEX,
Services

54,889

27,501

54,889

27,501

conventional installment payments, and others, in the installment payment of
Law 11.941/09. The debt is stated below:

Total

117,648

74,566

128,945

76,873
company

Consolidated

15. Payroll and social charges

Payroll and social charges mainly consist of salaries payable and provisions for

2012

2011

2012

2011

Installment payment Law no. 11.941/09

29,313

17,182

29,313

17,182

Provision for deferred IRPJ/CSLL

18,968

9,013

18,968

9,013

53

242

53

242

48,334

26,437

48,334

26,437

labor charges calculated according to the applicable legislation and are stated
at balance sheet date as follows:

company

Consolidated
Other installment payments

2012

2011

2012

2011
Total

Salaries

9,049

8,074

9,245

8,145

Social charges

13,418

16,282

13,709

16,425

18. Contingent liabilities

The Company is party in legal and administrative proceedings arising from the
Provision for vacation pay

27,666

25,594

28,266

25,820

normal course of its operations. The Management, supported on the opinion
of its lawyers and on prior experiences in regard to the claimed amounts,

Total

50,132

49,949

51,219

50,390

recognized a provision to the following contingencies considered sufficient to
cover possible future disbursements of cash, pursuant to CPC 25:
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company

Consolidated
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19. Shareholder’s equity

19.1. Capital stock
2012

2011

2012

2011

Capital stock, totally paid in, is R$ 235,000, represented by 205,058,000 common registered shares without par value.

Labor

4,229

2,176

4,229

2,176

19.2. Dividends and retained earnings
Civil

—

2,272

—

2,272

Shareholders are entitled to minimum dividends of 25% of net income for the
year, adjusted according to the legislation in effect.

Tax

—

995

—

995

The Management’s proposal to the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting is the recTotal

4,229

5,443

4,229

5,443

ognition of a special reserve for dividends not distributed, in the amount of R$
10,348, pursuant to article 202, paragraphs 4 and 5 of Law 6.404/76.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company presented the following changes in

20. Supplementary pension plan

contingent liabilities:

The amounts of actuarial liabilities, pursuant to CVM Resolution 600 and CPC
No. 33, referring to benefits offered to employees, are recognized in the Comtotal

Balance as of December 31, 2010

9,320

Recognition (reversal) of provisions

(3,877)

Balance as of December 31, 2011

5,443

Recognition (reversal) of provisions

(1,214)

pany's financial statements:

2012

2011

Long-term liabilities

6,540

5,361

Total

6,540

5,361

The Company is the sponsor of Mendesprev - Sociedade Previdenciária, a closed
Balance as of December 31, 2012

4,229

supplementary pension plan entity, set up as a not-for-profit organization, with
administrative and financial autonomy, and with the objective of assuring its
beneficiaries the complement of the retirement and pension proceeds.

The Company is party in other legal and administrative proceedings to which
the likelihood of loss is considered possible. Accordingly, the Management,

Mendesprev has two benefit plans, the CD Benefit Plan and the Mixed Ben-

supported by the evaluation of its legal counselors, has not recognized a pro-

efit Plan. The CD Benefit Plan is structured as a Defined Contribution plan,

vision for such possible losses. Based on these evaluations, the Company be-

in which the amount of benefits is adjusted at book balances kept on behalf

lieves that it has solid legal grounds to support the procedures adopted for its

of the participant, including when benefits are received, considering the net

defense. The need for recognizing a provision is periodically analyzed.

income of the investment, the carried amounts and the benefits paid. The
Mixed Benefit Plan refers to a plan composed of two parts: a defined contribu-

The ongoing legal proceedings, at the administrative and judicial levels to

tion (phase when funds are accumulated), and a defined benefit (phase when

which the likelihood of loss is considered possible, are stated at the balance

benefits are received).

sheet date as follows:
20.1. CD Benefit Plan
The CD Benefit Plan managed by Mendesprev is structured as a Defined Contricompany

Consolidated

bution Plan. As of December 31, 2012, the CD Benefit Plan of Mendesprev had
288 active participants, and there were no assisted participants and pensioners.

2012

2011

2012

2011

Labor

11,403

5,396

11,403

5,396

Civil

42,738

40,431

42,738

40,431

Tax

1,807

-

1,807

-

55,948

45,827

55,948

45,827

20.1.1. Costing plan
The contributions of the active and self-sponsored participants include:
a) Normal contribution: mandatory and monthly, corresponding to a percentage chosen by the Participant from 2% (two percent) to 7% (seven percent) of
their participation salary;
b) Extraordinary contribution: optional and occasional, corresponds to the
value chosen by the active and self-sponsored participant according to
Total

Notes to the financial statements

their convenience.
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The contributions of the sponsor include:

20.2.2. Plan benefits

a) Normal contribution: Monthly made, corresponds to 2% (two percent) of

The benefits of the plan are the following:

the participation salary;

a) Normal Retirement: The participant who meets the following criteria will be

b) Extraordinary contribution: sporadic, voluntary, designed to strengthen the

entitled to normal retirement benefit: minimum age of 60 years and minimum

balance of the active participant’s account.

participation in the plan of 5 years;

Mendes Júnior

b) Early Retirement: the eligibility for early pension will begin when the parAdministrative expenses are borne by the sponsor, self-sponsored participants,

ticipant meets the following criteria: minimum age of 55 years and minimum

participants who opted for proportional deferred benefits and retirees, as es-

participation in the plan of 5 years;

tablished by the actuary.

c) Permanent disability pension: for permanent disability pension, the participant must have his/her disability certified by a physician or expert accredited

20.1.2. Benefits

by Mendesprev Sociedade Previdenciária;

The benefits provided by CD Benefit Plan are:

d) Survivorship benefit: the eligibility for survivorship benefit is the death of

c) Retirement;

the participant or retiree:

d) Permanent disability pension;
e) Survivorship benefit;

• Death of the participant before retirement: A percentage fixed by the Regu-

f) Deferred proportional benefit;

lations of the Plan according to the number of dependents, plus the result of

g) Annual bonus.

the account balance in accordance with the actuarial standards, is applied to
the value that the participant would be entitled to receive had they retired

The monthly retirement benefit is provided at the time of application, as calcu-

due to disability.

lated by actuarial equivalence, based on the account balance and on the age

• Death of retiree: A percentage fixed by the Regulations of the Plan accord-

of the participant and their beneficiaries. Benefits are annually recalculated in

ing to the number of dependents is applied on the benefit received at the

November, based on the Assisted participant’s age, the beneficiaries and the

time of the death.

remaining balance of the individual benefit account.
The monthly benefits provided for in the Regulations to the Mixed Plan are
For purposes of compliance with CPC No. 33, accounting for commitments

annually adjusted in the Sponsor’s base date month, according to the National

of this type of plan is made by the amount of the Sponsor's contributions

Consumer Price Index (INPC). The base date of registration data is 12/31/2011.

to the plan during the 2012, and the calculation of actuarial obligations is

Following is the summary of the Company’s data:

not required.
20.2. Mixed benefit plan

Active participants

As of December 31, 2012, the Mixed Benefit Plan of Mendesprev had 196
active participants, 62 deferred participants, and 51 retirees (as of Decem-

Frequency of participants

196

and 48 retirees).

Average age (in years)

52

The Mixed Benefit Plan is a plan composed of two parts: one of defined con-

Monthly participation payroll

1,774

Average participation salary

9

ber 31, 2011 there were 194 active participants, 66 deferred participants,

tribution and another of defined benefit. The plan no longer accepts joining.
20.2.1. Costing plan
The benefits offered by the Plan are borne by means of:
a) Contributions of active and self-sponsored participants: mandatory and monthly, representing 7.5% (seven point five percent) of the participation salary portion

Deferred participants

exceeding 20 unit salaries;
b) Contribution of sponsors: Equal to 100% (one hundred percent) of the con-

Frequency of participants

62

Average age (in years)

47

of any kind.

Monthly participation payroll

98

Administrative expenses are borne by the sponsor and participants.

Average participation salary

2

tribution made by the participant;
c) Equity investment revenue;
d) Appropriations, donations, subsidies, legacies, earnings and other payments
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The changes in value referring to the defined benefit liability during the

Retirees

year are as follows:
Frequency of participants

51

Average age (in years)

64

Changes in the present value of actuarial obligations

Monthly participation payroll

339

Amount of actuarial obligations at the beginning of year

91,259

Average participation salary

7

Gross current service cost (plus interest)

2,051

Interest on actuarial obligations

9,609

Benefits paid in the year

(4,336)

Reconciliation of recognized (assets) and liabilities

2012

2011

Actuarial obligations

124,674

91,260

Actuarial (gains)/losses

26,091

Fair value of the plan’s assets

(89,551)

(75,193)

Amount of actuarial obligations at the end of year

124,674

Present value of unfunded obligations

35,123

16,067

The amounts to be paid in 2012 have been projected due to actuarial changes
Actuarial (gains) or losses
Total recognized actuarial (assets) liabilities, net
Actuarial (assets) liabilities provided for in balance sheet
(Assets) liabilities

(28,583)

(10,706)

6,540

5,361

(5,361)
1,179

and are expected to be as follows:

Expenses to recognize in the statement of income

2012

2011

Current service cost (plus interest)

2,052

1,699

Expected contributions of participants

(953)

(915)

Cost of interest on actuarial obligations

9,609

8,236

Expected return on assets

(8,461)

(6,266)

789

789

Expenses to be recognized by the employer in the year

3,036

3,543

Employer’s contributions referring to the plan costing

(1,857)

(1,744)

Total additional expenses (revenues) to be recognized

1,179

1,799

(3,562)
1,799

The Company recognized in 2012 an actuarial liability of R$ 1,179 to guarantee the full payment of the plan’s liabilities, as established under CVM Resolution No. 600. According to an actuarial opinion, in 2011, liabilities amounted
to R$ 1,799. The changes in the benefit plan’s fair value in the periods presented are as follows:

Amortization referring to cost of past services

Changes in the fair value of assets
Fair value of assets at the beginning of year

75,193

Benefits paid during the year

(4,336)

Participant’s contributions made during the year
Employer’s contributions made during the year

952
1,857

Actual return on assets in the year

15,884

Fair value of assets at the end of year

89,550

Notes to the financial statements

20.3. Assumptions used to calculate liabilities and projections
The assumptions and methods used were those required according to CPC
33 and CVM Resolution No. 600. As required by the aforesaid standard, the
projected credit unit method was adopted to calculate all actuarial liabilities:
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Economic and financial

2012

2011

Actuarial discount rate - effective

4.00% p.a.

5.50% p.a.

Actuarial discount rate - nominal

9.20% p.a.

10.78% p.a.

Expected return rate of assets - effective

4.00% p.a.

6.00% p.a.

23. General and administrative expenses

company

9.20% p.a.

11.30% p.a.

Salary growth rate - nominal

5.53% p.a.

5.53% p.a.

Benefits growth rate - nominal

5.00% p.a.

Projected inflation

5.00% p.a.

Capacity factor

97.00% p.a.

Consolidated

2012

2011

2012

2011

(58,429)

(50,051)

(58,429)

(50,051)

(854)

(1,027)

(854)

(1,027)

Rents

(4,508)

(4,038)

(4,508)

(4,038)

Third-party services

(46,136)

(36,304)

(46,136)

(36,304)

Others

(6,239)

(9,010)

(6,585)

(10,530)

Total

(116,166)

(100,430)

(116,512)

(101,950)

Expenses on personnel
Expected return rate of assets - nominal

Mendes Júnior

Purchase of sundry materials

5.00% p.a.
5.00% p.a.
97.00% p.a.

20.4. Accounting policy for the recognition of actuarial gains/losses
Actuarial studies project the change of several variables (assumptions) for fu-

24. Financial income (loss)

ture years. These projections can be realized or not, so that the differences

The breakdown of net financial revenues (expenses) is as follows:

between projected amounts and those which were actually incurred are calculated at each yearly actuarial evaluation. These differences are called actuarial
gains (or losses).

company

21. Insurance

Consolidated

2012

2011

2012

2011

Financial investments

2,689

8,966

2,689

8,966

Interests gains

1,047

9,708

1,047

9,708

Discounts obtained

240

924

240

924

Others

155

219

258

222

4,131

19,817

4,234

19,820

(35,490)

(39,995)

(35,490)

(39,995)

(6)

(759)

(6)

(759)

IOF (Tax on Financial Transactions)

(5,453)

(5,268)

(5,453)

(5,268)

Others

(2,018)

(1,367)

(2,018)

(1,371)

(42,967)

(47,389)

(42,967)

(47,393)

(38,836)

(27,572)

(38,733)

(27,573)

It is the Company’s policy to take insurance for its fixed asset items, civil liability
and engineering risks in amounts deemed sufficient to cover possible losses

Financial revenues arising from returns of

due to the risks involved.
22. Net sales

The breakdown of the main captions is the following:

company

Gross revenue from sales and/or services

Consolidated

2012

2011

2012

2011

1,334,555

1,348,543

1,397,776

1,358,362
Financial expenses arising from interest

Deductions from gross revenues

(94,607)

(99,850)

(97,958)

(100,354)
Losses

Total

1,239,948

1,248,693

1,299,818

1,258,008
Exchange rate losses

Financial losses, net
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25. Corporate Income Tax (IRPJ) and Social Contribution Tax (CSLL)

26. Risk management and financial instruments

Income and social contribution tax calculations are subject to review by tax

The Company and its controlled companies participate in transactions involv-

authorities for varying years and deadlines in relation to the payment date or

ing financial assets and liabilities in order to manage available financial funds

filling of the Corporate Income Tax Return (DIPJ).

generated by the operations.

Reconciliation of the Company’s IRPJ and CSLL provisions are stated as follows:

Risks associated to these instruments are managed through conservative strat-

Mendes Júnior

egies, aiming liquidity, profitability and security. Valuation of these financial
assets and liabilities in relation to market values, through available information
2012

2011

and valuation methodologies, require considerable judgment, and the estimates
presented may differ, if different hypotheses and methodologies are used.

Current IRPJ and CSLL

The Company and its controlled companies do not enter into complex deIncome before IRPJ and CSLL

58,219

24,081

rivatives, or into any other risk assets. Market values of financial assets and
liabilities do not differ from carrying value thereof, to the extent they were

Permanent add-backs

8,201

9,922

contracted and are recorded at rates and conditions used in market for operations of similar nature, risk and deadlines.

Temporary add-backs

37,800

50,508

The Company and its controlled companies are exposed to several financial
Permanent deductions

(2,791)

(13,586)

Temporary deductions

(66,694)

(38,327)

Equity in earnings (losses) of controlled companies

(23,166)

(6,071)

Taxable income

11,569

26,527

Income tax 15%

(1,735)

(3,979)

IRPJ surtax

(1,133)

(2,629)

risks inherent to the nature of their operations. Among the main factors of
market risks that may affect the Company’s business are:
a) Liquidity risk – this refers to the possibility of the Company and its controlled companies not having sufficient funds to fulfill their commitments due
to differences in settlement terms of their rights and obligations.
The control over liquidity and cash flows of the Company and its controlled
companies is daily monitored by the financial department, in order to guarantee that the generation of operating cash and the previous raising of funds,
when required, are sufficient to maintain the commitment schedule, not generating liquidity risks to the Company and its controlled companies.

Incentives

173

380

b) Credit risks – the credit risk is associated to the possibility of not receiving
CSLL 9%

(1,041)

(2,387)

amounts billed to their clients and it is mitigated by the fact that their portfolio of clients is mostly formed by large companies and long-term agreements

Total current

(3,736)

(8,615)

with cut off clauses. The amounts stated as overdue and related to shortterm agreements have their maturity terms renegotiated. There is no history
of losses recorded in trade accounts receivable since the incorporation of the

Deferred IRPJ and CSLL

Company and its controlled companies.
Assets

c) Financial risks – The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of certain
Deferred income, government entities

(30,981)

12,181

financial instruments fluctuating due to changes in interest rate and adjustment indexes. The Company manages market risk in order to guarantee that
it and its controlled companies are exposed only to a level of risk considered

Noncurrent liabilities

acceptable within the context of their operations.
Actuarial liabilities

(1,179)

(1,799)

Disputed liabilities

(1,614)

3,877

Deferred tax calculation liabilities

(33,774)

14,259

Deferred tax 34%

(11,483)

4,848
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